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April 27, 2018 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Bermuda Monetary Authority 
Hamilton, Bermuda 

Consolidated Statutory Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Statutmy Financial Statements of Sirius Bermuda 
Insurance Company Ltd. (the "Company") and its subsidiaries, which comprise the Consolidated Statutmy 
Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statutmy Statement of Capital and Surplus as at December 31, 2017, and 
the related Consolidated Statutmy Statement of Income for the year then ended. The Consolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements have been prepared by management based on the financial reporting 
provisions of The Insurance Act 1978, amendments thereto and the Insurance Account Rules 2016 (the 
"Legislation") . We have not audited the accompanying Insurer Information Sheet. 

Management's responsibility for the Consolidated Statutory Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Statutmy 
Financial Statements in accordance with the financial repmting provisions of the Legislation, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of Consolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Statutory Financial Statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Statutmy Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts in the Consolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Statutmy Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Statutory Financial 
Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements. 

P1·icewaterlzouseCoope1·s Ltd., Chartered PI'Djessional Accountants, P.O. Box HM 1171, Hamilton HM EX, Bermuda 
T: +1 (441) 295 2000, F:+l (441) 2951242, www.pwc.comjbermuda 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Consolidated Statutmy Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and their financial 
performance for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the 
Legislation. 

Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying our opinion, we note that the Consolidated Statutmy Financial Statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Legislation. The Consolidated 
Statuto1y Financial Statements which have not been, and were not intended to be, prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and this Auditor's Report, are solely for the information 
and use of the Bermuda Monetmy Authority and are not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than the Bermuda Monetary Authority, or for any other purpose. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Reference: Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Statutory Financial Statements of Sirius Bermuda 
Insurance Company Ltd.for the year ended December 31, 2017 
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Apri127, 2018 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Bermuda Monetmy Authority 
Hamilton, Bermuda 

Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements of Sirius Bermuda 
Insurance Company Ltd. (the "Company''), which comprise the Unconsolidated Statutmy Balance Sheet 
and Unconsolidated Statutmy Statement of Capital and Surplus as at December 31, 2017, and the related 
Unconsolidated Statutory Statement of Income for the year then ended, and the notes to the 
Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements. The Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements have 
been prepared by management based on the financial reporting provisions of The Insurance Act 1978, 
amendments thereto and the Insurance Account Rules 2016 (the "Legislation"). We have not audited the 
accompanying Insurer Information Sheet. 

Management's responsibility for the Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Unconsolidated Statutmy 
Financial Statements in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Legislation, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessmy to enable the preparation of Unconsolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Unconsolidated Statutmy 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the Unconsolidated 
Statutmy Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation ofthe Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd., Chartered Professional Accountants, P.O. Box HM 1171, Hamilton HM EX, Bermuda 
T: +1 (441) 295 2000, F:+J (441) 2951242, www.pwc.comj bermuda 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position ofthe Company as at December 31, 2017 and its financial performance for the year 
then ended in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Legislation. 

Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying our opinion, we note that the Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Legislation. The 
Unconsolidated Statutmy Financial Statements which have not been, and were not intended to be, 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and this Auditor's Report, are solely 
for the information and use of the Bermuda Monetary Authority and are not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than the Bermuda Monetary Authority, or for any other purpose. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Reference: Auditor's Report on the Unconsolidated Statutory Financial Statements of Sirius Bermuda 
Insurance Company Ltd.for the year ended December 31, 2017 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Directors of Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sirius Bermuda Insurance 
Company Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income, of 
shareholder's equity and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017. 

Management's Responsibility for tlre Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthe consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Audito1•s' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In malting those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2017 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Yriu.w~w. ... ~l~ 
New York, New York 
April 26, 2018 

\..\..~ 
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Sirius Rcrmuda Insura nce Company Ltd. 
Consolidated Ba lance Sheets 

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 

(Expressed in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and per share il?{ormation) 

Assets 
Fixed maturity investmen ts, at fair value 
Short-term investments, at fair value 
Common equity securities, at t:1ir value 
Other long-tenn investments, at amortized cost and fa ir value 
Total investments 
Cash 
Restricted cash 
Reinsurance recoverable o n unpaid losses 
Reinsurance recoverable o n paid losses 
Insurance and reinsurance premiums receivable 
Funds held by ceding companies 
Deferred acquisition costs 
Deferred tax asset 
Ceded unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums 
Accrued investment income 
Goodwill 
Intangible assets 
Accounts receivable on unsettled investment sales 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 
Unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums 
Debt 
Deferred tax liability 
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 
Ceded reinsurance payable 
Accounts payable o n unseltled investment purchases 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Shareholder's equity 
Common shares at $ 1.00 par value per share- authorized 120,000 shares; 

issued and outstand ing, 120,000 shares 
Additional paid-it1 surplus 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss), after-ta'<: 
Net unrea lized foreign currency translation (losses) 

Total shareholder's equity 
Non-controlling interests 

T otal equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

See Notes to Consolidated financial Statements 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

201 7 

2,165.3 
587.9 
299.2 
452. 1 

3,504.5 
199.2 

11.4 
319.7 

17.5 
541.6 
153.2 
120.9 
277.3 
106.6 

13.6 
122.7 
82.4 
0.3 

68.7 

5,539.6 

1,898.5 
506.8 

280.5 
73.4 

139.1 
0.3 

92.9 
2,991.5 

0. 1 

1,727.7 
956.0 

(1 35.9) 

2,547.9 
0.2 

2,548.1 
5,539.6 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 

2,886.7 
498.8 
11 8.0 
124.8 

3,628.3 
137.1 

291.5 
17.1 

394.6 
100.0 
84.7 

279.1 
101.1 

19.0 

5.0 

38.2 

5 ,095.7 

1,620.1 
398.0 

3.7 
239.7 
63.4 
99.6 

7.6 
71.7 

2,503.8 

0.1 

I ,59 1.2 
1,206.5 

(207.2) 

2,590.6 
1.3 

2,591.9 

5,095.7 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comllt·ehensive (Loss) Income 

Fot· the yea rs ended December 31,2017, 2016, and2015 

(Exe_ressed in millions of U.S. dollars) 2017 
Revenues 
Gross written insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 1,439.2 

Net written insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 1,088.6 

Net earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 997.6 
Net investment income 63.8 
Net realized investment (losses) gains (23.6) 
Net unrealized investment (losses) gains (23.2) 
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) 9.9 
Gain on revaluation of contingent consideration 35.2 
Other revenue 23.9 
Total revenues 1,083.6 
Expenses 
Loss and loss adjustment expenses 791.8 
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 222.7 
Other undem~·iting expenses 105.9 
General and administrati ve expenses 43.5 
Intangible asset amortization expenses 4.1 
Interest expense on debt 
Total exeenses 1,168.0 
Pt·e-tax (loss) income (84.4) 
Income tax (expense) benefit (46.5) 
(Loss) income before equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (130.9) 
Equity in earnings ofuneonsolidated affiliates, net of tax 
(Loss) income before income attributable to non-conh·olling interests (130.9) 
Income attributable to non-controlling interests 0.4 
Net ~lossl income attribut:tble to Sirius Bermuda's common shareholdet· (130.5l 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 
Change in equity in net unrealized (losses) gains ti·om investments in unconsolidated affiliates, net of tax 
Change in foreign currency translation, net of tax 7 1.3 
Net change in other, net of tax 

ComErchensive (loss) income attributable to Sirius Bermuda's common shareholder $ (59.2) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financia l Statements. 

2016 2015 

$ 1,269.0 $ 1,1 60.5 

$ 938.1 $ 847.6 

$ 890.1 $ 847.0 
55.7 39.4 

288.2 138.6 
(238.3) 102.9 

(17.5) (18.1) 

9.2 (0.2) 
987.4 1,109.6 

519.3 422.7 
2 10.3 189.8 
107.3 107.9 
47.9 11.0 

0.2 0.3 
885.0 731.7 
102.4 377.9 

7.4 (47.1) 

109.8 330.8 
6.6 23.9 

116.4 354.7 
(0.5~ 

115.9 354.7 

(29.8) 
(67.3) (65.4) 

0.8 
$ 49.4 $ 259.5 
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(.Expressed in millions of U.S. dollar~) 
Balances at Dccember31, 2014 
Net income 
Net change in unrealized investment 

gains (losses) from investments in 
unconsolidated affiliates 

Net change in foreign currency translation 
Comprehensive income (loss) 
Dividends declared on Common shares 
Distribution to parent 
Other, net 
Balances at December 31,2015 
Net income 
Net change in foreign currency translation 
Net change in other 
Comprehensive income (loss) 
Dividends declared on Common shares 
Capital contribution from parent 
Contribution from sale ofOneBeacon 
Other, net 
Balances at Decem bet· 31,2016 
Net income 
Net change in foreign currency translation 
Comprehensive income (loss) 
Dividends declared on Common shares 
Capital contribution from parent 
Other, net 
Balances a t December31, 2017 

Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Consolidated Sta tements of Shar eholder's Equi ty 

Fot· the years ended Decem bet· 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

Accumu lated 
Othet· 

Comprehensive 
Common Additional Retained J nco me (Loss), 

shares paid-in sur[! Ius c;Jrnings aftet· tax 
$ 0.1 $ 1,559.1 $ 899.0 s ~45.5) 

354.7 

(29.8) 
(65 .4) 

354.7 (95.2) 
(123.0) 

(10.0) 
(0. 1) 

0.1 1,549.1 1,130.6 (140.7) 
115.9 

(67.3) 
0.8 

11 5.9 (66.5) 
(40.0) 

20.0 
22. 1 

0.1 1,591.2 1,206.5 ~207.2) 

(130.5) 
71.3 

(130.5) 71.3 
(120.0) 

136.5 

$ 0.1 $ 1,727.7 $ 956.0 $ (135.9) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Total Non-
shareholder' s contt·olling Total 

eljUil~' interests C9Uil'y 
$ 2,412.7 $ - s 2,412.7 

354.7 354.7 

(29.8) (29.8) 
(65.4) (65.4) 

259.5 259.5 
(123.0) (123.0) 

(10.0) (10.0) 
(0. 1) 0.1 

2,539.1 0.1 2,539.2 
115.9 0.5 116.4 
(67.3) (67.3) 

0.8 0.8 
49.4 0.5 49.9 

(40.0) (40.0) 
20.0 20.0 
22.1 22.1 

0.7 0.7 

2,590.6 J.3 2,591.9 
(1 30.5) (0.4) ( 130.9) 

71.3 71.3 
(59.2) (0.4) (59.6) 

(120.0) (120.0) 
136.5 136.5 

(0.7) (0.7) 

s 2,547.9 s 0.2 $ 2,548.1 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31,2017, 2016, and 2015 

(&pressed inmiffions of U.S. doffarsd 2017 2016 2015 

Cash flows (used for) provided from operations: 
Net income $ (130.5) $ 115.9 $ 354.7 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from (used for) operations: 
Net realized and unrealized investment gains 46.8 (49.9) (24 1.5) 
Amortization of premium on fixed maturity investments 16.7 21.0 22.3 
Amortization of intangible assets 4. 1 
Depreciation and other amorti<:ation 7.9 6.7 5.5 
Revaluation of contingent consideration (35.2) 
Excess of f.1ir value of acquired net assets over cost (4.3) 
Net gain on sale of consolidated affiliates ( 1.0) 
Undistributed equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, after-tax (6.6) (23.9) 
Other operating items: 
Net change in loss ami loss adjustment expense reserves 202.5 18.1 ( 100.7) 
Net change in reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses (11.1 ) (23.6) 24.6 
Net change in funds held by ceding companies (38.9) ( 15. 1) (4.8) 
Net change in unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums 61.7 60.8 27.4 
Net change iu ceded reinsurance payable 22.8 11.5 8.4 
Net change in ceded uneamed insurance and reinsurance premiums 14.4 ( 1.9) ( 18.9) 
Net change in insurance and reinsurance premiums receivable (102.1 ) (95.4) (39.2) 
Net change in deferred acquisition costs (29.9) ( 14.2) (8.6) 
Net change in funds held under reinsurance treaties 5.8 13.0 (0.9) 
Net change in current and deferred income taxes, net 32.4 (12.0) 12.0 
Net change in other assets and liabilities, net (40.9) 3.5 34.4 

Net cash (used for) provided from operations 26.5 27.5 49.8 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Net change in short-tenn investments (3.9) ( 194.3) 132.3 
Sales of fixed maturities and convertible fixed maturity investments 1,385.6 2,300.3 2, 123. 1 
Maturities, calls, and paydowns of fixed maturity and convertible fixed maturity investments 290.6 141.8 178.3 
Sales of common equity securities 71.7 844.6 3 12.6 
Distributions and redemptions of other long-tcnn investments 40.6 27.9 13.2 
Sales of consolidated subsidiaries and unconsolidated affiliates, net of cash sold 173.5 14.3 
Contributions to other long-tcm1 investments (376.9) (73.5) (10.7) 
Purchases of common equity securities ( 164.9) (220.9) (266. 1) 
Purchases of fixed maturities and convertible fixed maturity investments (998.1) (3,085.7) (2,359.6) 
Purchases and mergers of consolidated and unconsolidated affiliates, net of cash acquired (115.6) 27.5 
Net change in unsettled investment purchases and sales (8.0) 37.2 ( 11.0) 
Other, net (4.9) 4.3 (9.2) 

Net cash erovi<.lcd from invcstin!i activities 116.2 (17.3) 11 7.2 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Capital contribution from parent 64.9 20.0 
Contribution from sale ofOncBeacon 22.1 
Repayment of debt (3.8) 
Payment of contingent consideration (30.6) 
Cash dividends paid on common shares (120.0) (40.0) ( 123.0) 
Return of capital from Olympus Re (10.0) 
Other, net (0.8) 0.8 

Net cash provided from (used for) financing activities (90.3) 2.9 (133.0) 

Effect of cxclmngc rate changes on cash 9.7 (9.4) (4 .5) 
Net (decrease) incr·ease in cash during year· 62.1 3.7 29.5 
Cash balance at beginning of year 137.1 133.4 103.9 

Cash balance at end of year s 199.2 s 137.1 s 133.4 

Supplemental cash now information: 
Non-cash financing activities: 
Contribution of The Phoenix common shares and call option s 71.6 s s 

See Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

Note I. Summny of significant accounting policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements at December 3 1, 2017, have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
pri nciples in the United States o f America ("GAAP") and include the accounts of Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. (the "Company'' or "Sirius 
Bermuda") and its subsid iaries (collectively with the Company, "SBDA") and other entities required to be consolidated under GAAP. The Company is 
a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Sirius International Group, Ltd. ("Sirius Group") and an indirect wholly O\\~led subsid iary of Sirius lntemationa1 
Insurance Group, Ltd. ("Sirius Ltd."), each a Bermuda company. On April 18, 2016, CM International Holding Pte. Ltd ("CMIG International"), a 
Singapore Holding Company, through its Bermuda holding company CM Bermuda Ltd. ("CM Bermuda"), purchased Sirius Ltd. and its subsidiaries 
from White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. ("White Mountains" or "former parent"). Sirius Ltd. and its subsidiaries have elected not to apply 
pushdown accounting after being acquired by CM IG International. 

The Company is an exempted Bermuda limited liabil ity company and a Class 4 licensed Bermuda insurer who along with its subsidiaries provide 
insurance, reinsurance, and insurance services on a worldwide basis. SBDA provides insurance and reinsurance products for property, accident and 
health, aviation and space, trade credit, marine, agriculture and certain other exposures on a worldwide basis through Sirius Bermuda and its 
subsidiaries, Sirius Tnlcrnationallnsurance Corporation ("Sirius Tntcmational"), Sirius America Insurance Company ("Sirius America"), and Lloyd's 
Syndicate 1945 ("Syndicate 1945"). SBDA also specializes in the acquisition and management of runoff insurance and reinsurance companies both in 
the United Stales and internationally through Sirius Global Solutions Holding Company ("Sirius Global Solutions"). SBDA through ArmadaGlobal 
("Annada"), which was acquired in 20 17, provides supplemental healthcare insurance products as well as administration services. (Sec Note 2). 

Sirius Bermuda is an insurance and reinsurance company domiciled in Bermuda with its home office in Hamilton, Bem1uda. 

Sirius International is an insurance and reinsurance company domiciled in Sweden with its home ofllce in Stockholm, Sweden; and branch offices, 
representative offices, or subsidiaries in London, United Kingdom; Zurich, Switzerland; Singapore; Shanghai, China; Labuan, Malaysia; Sydney, 
Australia; Liege, Belgium; Hamburg, Germany; and Hamilton, Bemmda. 

Sirius America is an insurance and reinsurance company domiciled in the state of New York with offices in New York, New York; Glastonbury, 
Connecticut; Miami, Florida; San Francisco, California; Berwyn, Pem1sylvania; and Toronto, Ontario. 

Syndicate 1945 is a Lloyd's of London syndicate that SBDA sponsors and manages. Syndicate 1945 \\~·ites a diverse mix of business, including, 
accident and health, contingency (which principally covers the occurrence or non-occurrence of insured events, such as event cancellation or prize 
redemption), bloodstock (which principally covers the value o f an animal if it dies as a result o f accident, disease or illness), terrorism, marine energy 
and cargo lines. Syndicate 1945 wrote premiums of$129.6 million, $166.7 million, and $123.4 mi llion during 2017,2016, and 20 15, respectively. 
Lloyd's approved stamp capacity for Syndicate 1945 in 20 18 is £101.9 million, or approximately $ 137.7 million (based on the December 3 1, 2017 GBP 
to USD exchange rate). 

Sirius Global Solutions, is a Connecticut-based division of SBDA specializing in the acquisition and management of runoff liabilities for insurance and 
reinsurance companies, both in the United States and internationally. SBDA can derive value from these acquisitions not only from the discounted 
purchase price, but also from the investment income on insurance float , the potential settlement of claims below the carried level of reserves and the 
harvesting of other embedded assets, including the va lue of shell companies and licenses. Since its formation in 2000, Sirius Global Solutions has 
executed 13 transactions involving 18 companies, which have resulted in approximately $185 million of cumulative after-tax income through December 
3 1, 2017. 

Armada is a Maryland-based division ofSBDA that specializes in insurance services and health care technology that creates specialty employee benefit 
products and serves to strengthen health care coverage and access. 

All intercompany transactions have been e liminated in consolidation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities as of the dale o f the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Certain amounts in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolithlted Financial Statements 

Fo1· the years ended December 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

Marllcting and Distribution 

SBDA obtains most of its reinsurance submissions from reinsurance intermediaries that represent the ceding company. During the years ended 
December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, SODA received a majority of its gross reinsurance premiums written from four major, third-party reinsurance 
intermediaries as detailed in the following table: 

Gross wl"itteu premium by inle•·mcdiary 2017 2016 2015 
AON Corporation and subsidiaries 22% 22% 24% 
Guy Carpenter & Company and subsidiaries 18% 18% 18% 
WT Butler and Co. Ltd. 10% 8% 7% 
Willis Group and subsidiaries 9% 8% 9% 

Total 59% 56% 58% 

Geographic Concentration 

The following table shows SBDA's net writ1en premiums by geographic region based on the location of the ceding company for the years ended 
December 31,2017,2016, and 20 15: 

(Millions) 

United States 

Europe 
Canada, the Caribbean, Bermuda and Latin America 
Asia and Other 

Tota l 

$ 

2017 

561.5 
262.3 
111.4 
153.4 

$ 1,088.6 

$ 

$ 

2016 

463.0 
258.9 
88.3 

127.9 

938.1 

$ 

s 

2015 

397.5 
241.9 
101.2 
107.0 

847.6 

SBDA conducts a significant portion of its business outside of the United States. As a result, a significant portion of SBDA's assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses arc denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar and are therefore subject to foreign currency risk. SBDA's foreign currency risk 
cannot be eliminated entirely and significant changes in foreign exchange rates may adversely affect SBDA's results of operations and financial 
condition. 

SBDA's foreign operations are subject to legal, political, and operational risks that may be greater than those present in the United States. As a resu lt, 
certain of SBDA's operations at these foreign locations could be temporarily or permanently disrupted. 

Significant Account ing Policies 

luvestmeut Securities 
As of December 31, 2017, the majority of SBDA 's invested assets consisted of securities and other investments held for general investment purposes. 
SBDA's invested assets also consist of investments in related-party debt instruments. (See Note 16.) SI3DA's portfolio of fixed maturity investments 
and common equity securities held for general investment purposes arc classified as trading and arc reported at fair value as of the balance sheet date. 
Changes in unrealized gains and losses are reported pre-tax in revenues. Realized investment gains and losses are accounted fo r using the specific 
identification method and are reported pre-tax in revenues. Premiums and discounts on all fixed maturity investments are amortized and/or accreted to 
income over the anticipated life of the investment. SBDA's portfolio of investments in related-party debt instruments are classified as held-to-maturity, 
as SI3DA has the ability and positive intent to hold these iliStruments until mat\lrity. Related-party debt instruments are reported at amo1tizcd cost as of 
the balance sheet date. Interest income received from related-party debt instruments are reported in pre-tax revenues. 

SBDA's invested assets that are measured at fair value include fixed maturity investments, common and preferred equity securities, and certain other 
long-term investments, such as interests in hedge funds and private equities. In determining its estimates of fair value, SBDA uses a variety of valuation 
approaches and inputs. Whenever possible, SBDA estimates fair value using valuation methods that maximize the use of quoted prices and other 
observable inputs. 
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For the yea rs ended Deccmbc•· 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

Investments valued using Level I inputs include fixed maturities, primarily investments in U.S. Treasuries, common equities and short-term 
investments, which include U.S. Treasury Bills. Investments valued using Level 2 inputs comprise fixed maturities including corporate debt, state and 
other governmental debt, convertible fixed matmity and preferred investments, and mortgage and asset-backed securities. Fair value estimates for 
investments that trade in fi·equently and have few or no observable market prices are classified as Level 3 measurements. Level 3 fair value estimates 
based upon unobservable inputs include SBDI\'s investments in certain debt securities, including asset-backed securities, and equity securities where 
quoted market prices are unavailable or arc not considered reasonable. SI3DA determines when transfers between levels have occurred as of the 
beginning of the period. SBDA uses brokers and outside pricing services to assist il1 determin ing fair values. For investments in active markets, SllDA 
uses the quoted market prices provided by outside pricing services to determine fair value. The outside pricing services used by SBDA have indicated 
that if no observable inputs are available for a security, they will not provide a price. In those circumstances, SI3DA estimates the fair value using 
industry standard pricing models and observable inputs such as benchmark interest rates, market comparables, broker quotes, issuer spreads, bids, 
offers, credit rating prepayment speeds and other relevant inputs. SBDA performs procedures to validate the market prices obtained from the outside 
pricing sources. Such procedures, which cover substantially all of its fixed maturity investments include, but are not limited to, evaluation of model 
pricing methodologies and a review of the pricing services' quality control processes and procedures. Prices provided by the pricing services that vary 
by more than 5% and $ 1.0 million from the expected price based on these procedures are considered outliers. Prices that have not changed !i·om 
period to period and prices that have trended unusually compared to market condit ions are also considered outliers. 

In circumstances where the results of SBDA's review process do not appear to support the market price provided by the pricing services, SBDA 
challenges the price. During the past year SI3DA did not issue any challenges with the pricing service. If SI3DA cannot gain satisfactory evidence to 
support the challenged price, it relies upon its own pricing methodologies to estimate the fair value of the security in question. The fair values of such 
securities are considered to be Level 3 measurements. 

SODA's inveshnents in debt securities, including asset-backed securities, are generally valued using matrix and other pricing models. Key inputs 
include benchmark yields, benchmark securities, reported trades, issuer spreads, bids, offers, credit ratings and prepayment speeds. Income on 
mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities is recognized using an effective yield based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic life 
of the securities. When actual prepayments differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the estimated economic life is recalculated and the 
remaining unamortized premium or discount is amortized prospectively over the remaining economic life. 

Short-term investments consist of money market funds, certificates of deposit and other securities which, at the time of purchase, mature or become 
available for use within one year. Short-tern1 investments are carried at carried at fair value. 

Otl1er Long-term lm•estments 
Other long-term iJJVestments consist primarily of hedge funds, private equity funds, o ther investments in limited partnerships, other private equity 
securities and related-party instruments. SBDA has elected the fair value option for valuing most of its investments in hedge funds, private equity 
funds, other limited partnership investments, and other private equity securities. For the investments for wh ich SBDA has elected the fair value option, 
changes in fair value are reported in revenues on a pre-tax basis. For those Other long-te1111 investments fo r which SBDA has not made the fair value 
election, SBDA accounts for its interests at amorti;!;ed cost or in accordance with equity method accounting. 

Derillfllil•e Financiallnstmments 
SBDA holds derivative financial instruments for both risk management and investment purposes. SBDA recognizes all derivatives as either assets or 
liabilities, measured at fair value, in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fa ir value of derivative instruments are recognized in current period 
pre-tax income. 

Weather Derivatives 
SBDA assumes liabilities related to weather and weather contingent risk management products. Weather and weather contingent derivative conh·acts 
arc entered into with the objective of generating profits in normal climatic conditions. Accordingly, SBDA's weather and weather contingent 
derivatives arc not designed to meet the criteria for hedge accounting under GAAP. SBDA receives payment of premium at the contract inception in 
exchange for bearing the risk of variations in a quantifiable weather index. Changes in fair value are recognized as unrealized gains or losses and are 
presented within Other revenue. Management uses avai lable market data and internal pricing models based upon consistent statistical methodologies 
to estimate the fair value. (See Note 1 0.) 

Cash 
Cash includes amounts on hand and demand deposits with banks and other financia l institutions. Amounts presented in the statement of cash flows are 
shown net of balances acquired and sold in the purchase or sale of the Company's consolidated subsidiaries and exclude changes in amounts of 
Restricted cash. 

Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents that SBDA is a) holding for the benefit of a third party and is legally or contractually restricted as 
to withdrawal or usage for general corporate purposes; and b) not replaceable by another type of asset other than cash or cash equivalents, under the 
terms ofSBDA's contractual arrangements with such third parties. 
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lnsumnce and Reinsurance Operations 
SBDA accounts for insurance and reinsurance policies that it 111ites in accordance with authoritative guidance. Premiums written arc recognized as 
revenues and are earned ratably over the term of the related policy or reinsurance treaty. Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written 
that arc applicable to future insurance or reinsurance coverage provided by policies or treaties in force. SI3DA charges fees on certain of its insurance 
policies. 

Jn 20 17, SDDA changed certain est imates o f Gross written insurance and reinsurance premiums to better align the revenue recognition with the 
substantive nature of the underlying risk exposure and consistently recognize revenue across the Company. The net effect o f this change on Net earned 
insurance and reinsurance premiums and Pre-tax (loss) income was not significant. Premiums relating to reinsurance business written on au excess of 
loss basis that were previously recorded fo llowing the deposit method were changed to record an estimate of premium at the inception of the contract. 
Premiums that were previously recorded fo llowing the deposit method over a 16-month or 24-month period from inception of the contract were changed 
to the deposit method over a 12-month period from inception of the contract. There was no change to premiums relating to reinsurance business written 
on a proportional basis; such premiums are recorded following the deposit method over a 12-month period from inception of contract. 

Deferred acquisition costs represent commissions, premium taxes, brokerage expenses, and other costs which are directly attributable to and vary with 
the production of business. These costs are deferred and amortized over the period during which the premiums are earned. Amortization of Deferred 
acquisition costs are shown net of contractual commissions eamed on reinsurance ceded within Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses. 
Deferred acquisition costs are limited to the mnount expected to be recovered from future eamcd premiums and anticipated investment income. This 
limitation is referred to as a premium deficiency. A premium deficiency is recognized if the sum of expected loss and loss adjustment expenses 
("LAE"), expected dividends to policyholders, unamortized acquisition costs, and maintenance costs exceeds related unearned premiums and 
anticipated investment income. A premium deficiency is recognized by charging any unamot1izcd acquisition costs to expense to the extent required in 
order to eliminate the deficiency. If the premium deficiency exceeds unamortized acquisition costs then a liability is accrued for the excess deficiency. 

Losses and LAE are charged against income as incurred. Unpaid insurance Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are based on estimates 
(generally determined by claims adjusters, legal counsel and actuarial sta ff) of the ultimate costs of settling claims, including the effects of inflation 
and other societal and economic factors. Unpaid reinsurance Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are based primarily on rep01ts received from 
ceding companies and actuarial projections. Unpaid Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represent management's best estimate of ultimate 
losses and LAE, net of estimated salvage and subrogation recoveries, if applicable. Such estimates are regularly reviewed and updated and any 
resulting adjustments are reflected in current operations. The process of estimating Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves involves a considerable 
degree o f judgment by management and the ultimate amount of expense to be incurred could be considerably greater than or less than the amounts 
currently reflected in the financial statements. 

SODA enters into ceded reinsurance contracts to protect its businesses from losses due to concentration of risk, to manage its operating leverage ratios 
and to limit losses aris ing fi·om catastrophic events. Such re insurance contracts are executed through excess of loss treaties and catastrophe contracts 
under which the reinsurer indemnifies for a specified pmt or all of certain types of losses over stipulated amounts ari sing fi·01n any one occurrence or 
event. SBDA has also entered into quota share treaties with reinsurers under which all risks meeting prescribed criteria arc covered on a pro-rata basis. 
The amount of each risk ceded by SI3DA is subject to maximum limits which vary by line of business and type of coverage. 

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers arc estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured policies. The 
co llectabjlity of reinsurance rccoverables is subject to the solvency of the reinsurers. SBDA is selective in regard to its reinsurers, principally placing 
reinsurance with those reinsurers with a strong financial condition, industry ratings, and unden11·iting ability. Management monitors the financial 
condition and ratings of its reinsurers on an ongoing bas is. 

Reinsurance premiums, commissions, expense reimbursements, and reserves related to reinsured business are accounted fo r on a basis consistent with 
those used in accounting for the original policies issued and the terms o f the reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance premiums ceded are expensed over 
the period the reinsurance coverage is provided. Ceded unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums represent the portion of premiums ceded 
applicable to the unexpired term of policies in force. Funds held by ceding companies represent amounts due to SBDA in connection with certain 
assumed reinsurance agreements in which the ceding company retains a portion of the premium to provide security against future loss payments. The 
funds held by ceding companies are generally invested by the ceding company and a contractually agreed interest amount is credited to SBDA and 
recognized as investment income. Funds held under reinsurance treaties represent contractual payments due fi·om SBDA that arc been retained to 
secure such obligations. Such amounts are recorded as liabilities in the consolidated finm1cia l statements. 

Accruals for contingent commission liabilities are established for reinsurance contracts that provide fo r the stated commissio n percentage to increase 
or decrease based on the loss experience of the contract. Changes in the estimated liability for contingent commission arrangements are recorded as 
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses. Accruals for contingent commjssion liabi lities are determined tluough the review of the contracts 
that have these adjustable features and arc estimated based on expected loss and LAE. 

/usurttnce-relrtled Assessments 
Under existing guaranty fund laws in the United States, insurers licensed to do business in those states can be assessed for certain obligations of 
insolvent insurance companies to policyholders and claimants. SBDA records guaranty fund assessments when it is probable that an assessment will be 
made and the amoun t can be reasonably estimated. 
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Deferred Software Costs 
SBDA capitalizes costs related to computer software developed for interna l use during the application development stage of software development 
projects. These costs generally consist of certain external, payroll and payroll-related costs. SBDA begins amortization of these costs once the project is 
completed and ready for its intended use. Amortization is on a straight-line basis and over a usefu l life of three to five years. As of December 31, 2017 
and 20 16, SBDA had unamortized deterred sofiware costs of$7.6 mi ll ion and $8. 1 million. 

Commission and Other Re11enue Recognition 
SBDA recognizes agent commissions and other revenues when it has fuJtilled all of its obligations necessary to earn the revenue and when it can both 
reliably estimate the amount of revenue, net of any amounts expected to be uncollectible, and any amounts associated with expected cancel lations. 

Federal all(/ Foreign Income Taxes 
Some ofSBDA's subsidiaries file consolidated tax returns in the United Stales. SBDA has subsidiaries in various jurisdictions, including but not limited 
to Sweden, United Kingdom, and Luxembourg, which are subject to applicable taxes in those jurisdictions. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded when a difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial rep011ing 
purposes and the amounts for tax purposes exists, and for other temporary differences. The deferred tax asset or liability is recorded based on tax rates 
expected to be in effect when the d ifference reverses. The deferred tax asset is recognized when it is more likely than not that it will be realized. 

Foreign Currency Exchange 
The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for SBDA's businesses except for Sirius International, Syndicate 1945, several subsidiaries ofiMG, and the 
Canadian reinsurance operations of S irius America. SBDA also invests in securities denominated in foreign currencies. Assets and liabilities recorded 
in these foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses are 
converted using the average exchange rates fo r the period. Net foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the translation of functional currencies 
are reported in shareholder's equity, in accumulated other comprehensive income o r loss. As of December 3 1, 2017 and 2016, SBDA had Net 
unrealized foreign currency lTanslation losses of $ 135.9 million and $207.2 mill ion recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), 
afier-tax on its consolidated balance sheet. 

Assets and liabilities relating to foreign operations are remeasured into tbe functional currency using current exchange rates; revenues and expenses 
are remcasured into the functional currency using the weighted average exchange rate for the period. The resulting exchange gains and losses arc 
reported as a component of net income in the period in which they arise. 

The following rates of exchange for the U.S. dollar have been used tor the most significant operations: 

C los ing Closing 
C urrency Rate 2017 Rate 2016 
Swedish kronor 8.205 1 9 .0549 
British pound 0.7398 0.8074 
Euro 0.8339 0.9479 
Canadian dollar 1.2556 1.3432 
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II. summary of the impact of fore ign currency translation on SBDA's consolidated financial results for the years ended December 3 1, 2017, 20 16, and 
20 15 follows: 

(Millions) 

Net realized investment (losses) ga ins - foreign currency!!) 
Net unrealized investment (losses) gains - foreign currcncy(2) 

Net realized and unrealized investment (losses) gains - foreign currency 
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) - foreign currency trans lation (losses) gains(J) 
Income tax expense 

Total foreign ctmcncy remeasurement (losses) gains recognized through net income, after tax 
Change in foreign currency translation on investments recognized through 
other comprehensive income, after tax 

Change in foreign currency translation on non-in vestment net liabilities 
recognized through o ther comprehensive income, after tax 

Total foreign currency translation gains (losses) recognized through other comprehensive income, after tax 

Total foreign currency gains (losses) rccognizcu in comprehensive (loss) income, afte•· tax 

2017 

$ ( 15.8) 
(52.9) 

(68.7) 

9.9 
3.3 

(55.5) 

83.9 

( 12.6) 

71.3 

$ 15.8 

2016 

$ 49.8 
(7.5) 

42.3 
( 17.5) 

2.4 

27.2 

(83.1) 

15.8 

(67.3) 

$ (40.1) 

(/)Component of Net realized investment (losses) gaim on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income 
(1) Component of Net unrealized investment (losses) gains on/he Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income 
(J) Component of Net foreign gaim (losses) on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Los.\) Income 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

2015 

$ 70.6 
(15.4) 

55 .2 
(18. 1) 

(0.2) 

36.9 

( 11 0.7) 

45.3 

(65.4) 

$ (28.5) 

Goodwill represents the excess o f the purchase price of an acquis ition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is evaluated 
for impairment on an annua l basis. SBDA initially evaluates goodwill using a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more like ly than not that 
the fair value of goodwill is greater than its carrying value. If the results of the qualitative evaluation indicate that it is more likely than not that the 
carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value, SBDA performs the quantitative test for impairment. 

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for impairment similar to goodwill. Finite-lived intangible are amortized on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. The amortization periods approximate the period over which SBDA expects to generate future net cash inllows from the use 
of these assets. All of these assets are subject to impairment testing for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets when events or conditions 
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be fully recoverab le from future cash nows. 

If goodwill or intangib le assets are impaired, such assets are written down to their fair values with the related expense recorded in SODA's results of 
operations. (See Note 7.) 

Non-controlling Interests 
Non-contro lling interests consist of the ownership interests of non-controlling shareholders in consolidated subsidiaries, and arc presented separate ly on 
the balance sheet. The portion of comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests is presented net of related income taxes in the statement 
of operations and comprehensive income. 

Variable Interest Entities 
SBDA consolidates a variable interest entity ("VIE") when it has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most sign ificantly impact its 
economic performance and e ither the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive returns from the VlE that could potentially be sign ificant to the 
VfE. 

Recently Adopted C hanges in Accounting Principles 

Short-Duration Contracts 
Effec ti ve December 3 1, 20 17, SBD/1. adopted ASU 20 I 5-09, Disclosures about Short Duration Contracts (ASC 944), which requires expanded 
footnote disclosures about Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves. Upon adoption, SBDA mod ified its footnote disclosures to include loss 
development tables on a disaggrcgated basis by accident year and a reconci liation o f loss developmen t data to the Loss and loss adjustment expense 
reserves re llectcd on the balance sheet. The footnote disclosures have also been expanded to include info rmation about claim frequency data, 
including a description of how the claims fi·equency data is measured. Prior year disclosures have been modified to conform to the new disclosures. 
(See Note 3.) 
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Goodwill 
Effect ive December 3 1, 2017 SBDA elected early adoption of ASU 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (J'opic 350): Simplifying the Test for 
Goodwill Impairment. The guidance simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. 
Under the amendments in this guidance, an entity performs its annual, or interim, goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting 
unit with its carrying amount. An entity should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting 
unit's fair value; however, the Joss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting un it. Additionally, an entity 
shou ld consider income tax effects from any tax deductible goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting unit when measuring the goodwill 
impairment loss, if applicable. l11e guidance also eliminated the requirements for any repmting unit with a zero or negative carry ing amount to 
perform a qualitative assessment and, if it fails that qualitative test, to perform Step 2oft he goodwill impairment lest. Therefore, the same impairment 
assessment applies to all reporting units. An entity is required to disclose the amount of goodwill allocated to each rcpmting unit with a zero or 
negative carrying amount of net assets. An entity still has the option to perfom1 the qualitative assessment for a reporting unit to determine if the 
quantitative impairment test is necessary. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Statement of Cas II Flow~· 
ln November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement ofCash Flows: Restricted Cash (ASC 230). The new guidance adds and clarifies the 
classification and presentation of restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. The standard also requires a description of the nature of the changes in 
restricted cash and cash equivalents during the periods presented. The updated guidance in ASU 2016-1 8 is effective for interim and annual reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. SBDA is evaluating the expected impact of this new guidance. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 20 16-15, Statement of Cash Flows: Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (ASC 230). 
This standard provides guidance on how certain cash receipts and cash payments should be presented and classi lied in the statement of cash flows, 
including among others, debt prepayment and extinguishment costs, contingent consideration payments made after a business combination, proceeds 
from the se!tlement of insurance claims and distributions received from equity method investees. The standard also clarifies that when cash receipts 
and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows and cannot be separated, classilication will depend on the predominant source or 
use of the underlying cash flows. ASU 2016-15 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 20 I 8, including interim periods. SI3DA is 
currently assessing the impact of adoption this guidance will have on future financial statements and disclosures. 

Credit Losses 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (ASC 326), which establishes new guidance for 
the recognition of credit losses for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The new ASU, which applies to financial assets that have the contractual 
right to receive cash, including reinsurance receivables, requires reporting entities to estimate the credit losses expected over the life of a credit exposure 
using historical information, current information and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the financia l asset. ASU 20 I 6· 
13 is effective for annua l periods beginning after December 15,2020, including interim periods. SBDA is evaluating the expected impact of this new 
guidance. 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (ASC 842). The new guidance requires lessees to recognize lease assets and liabilities on the 
balance sheet for both operating and financing leases, with the exception of leases with an original term of 12 months or less. Under existing guidance 
recognition of lease assets and liabilities is not required for operating leases. The lease assets and liabil ities to be recognized are both measured initially 
based on the present value of the lease payments. The new guidance is effective for SBDA for years beginning after December 15, 2019, including 
interim periods therein. SBDA is evaluating the expected impact of this new guidance and available adoption methods. 

Re1•enue Recognition 
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 20 14-09, Revenue fi'om Contracts with Customers (ASC 606), which modifies the guidance for revenue 
recognition. The scope of the new ASU excludes insurance contracts but is applicable to certain fee arrangements as well as commissions and other 
non-insurance revenues. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 20 I 5-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606), which delayed the 
effective date of ASU 20 I 4-09 to annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. SBDA is in the process of evaluating the 
new guidance and has not yet determined the potential effect of adoption on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows, but does not 
expect the impact of the adoption of ASU 20 15-14 to have a significant impact on its financial statements. 
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Note 2. Significant transactions 

SBDA completed the following transactions: 

On September 14, 2017, Sirius Ltd. entered into a definitive agreement to purchase 4.9% ("Ini tia l Phoenix Shares") of The Phoenix 
H oldings, Ltd. ("The Phoenix") from Dclck Group Ltd. ("Dclck Group") for New Israeli Shekel ("NIS") 208 million in cash (or $58.8 
million on date of purchase). As part of the agree ment, Sirius Ltd. purchased the Initial Phoen ix Shares on September 19, 2017, and 
submitted an application to the Israeli Commissioner of Capital Markets, Insurance and Savings (the "Israeli Commissioner of Insurance") 
for a permit to control The Phoenix. Sirius Ltd . had an exclusivity period expiring November 23, 2017 to conduct due di ligence, during 
which time Sirius Ltd. exercised the option to purchase all ofDelek Group's remaining shares in The Phoenix (approximately 47.4%) for 
an additional stun ofNIS 2.3 billion in cash (or $663. 1 million using the December 3 1, 20 17 NIS to USD conversion rate), subject to 
certain adjustments for interest and earnings. During December 20 17, Sirius Ltd. contributed The Phoenix common shares and call option 
to the Company. ln January 20 18, Phoenix issued an additional 5.249 million shares, which changed the Company' s ownership 
percentage to 4.85% and the Dclek Group ownership percentage to 46.24%. At December 3 1, 20 17 Sirius Ltd. was awaiting regu latory 
approval from the Israeli Commissioner of Insurance, the Israel Securities Authority, the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange, and the Is rael 
Antitrust Commissioner in connection with the pro posed change in control of The Phoenix. At December 31, 20 17, the investment in The 
Phoenix was included in Common equ ity securities, at fair value at $67.3 million. The exercised call option to purchase the 46.24% of 
outstanding shares is valued at a cost of $4.5 million and is included in Other assets. 

On April 3, 2017, SBDA purchased I 00% of ArmadaCorp Capital, LLC ("Annada") and its subsid iaries from Annada Enterprises LLC 
("Seller"). Armada is an insurance services and health care technology business that creates specialty employee benefit products and 
serves to strengthen health care coverage and access. Total consideration for the acquisition consisted of I) the purchase o f 50% of 
Armada by SBDA for $ 123.4 million, and 2) the redemption by Armada o f the remaining 50% held by Seller for a redemption price based 
on a three year contingent earn-out mechanism that could result in an additional payment to Seller o f up to $125.0 million ("An nada 
Earnout"), with fai r value of$79.1 million at acquisition date, resulting in a total enterprise value of$202.5 million. As of the acquisition 
date, SBDA recognized total assets acquired related to Armada of $2 15.8 mill ion, including $ 11.6 million of tangible assets, $122.7 
million of goodwill, and $81.5 million of other intangible assets; and total liabilities assumed o f $ 13.3 mill ion at their estimated fair 
values. TI1e goodwill balance is primarily attributed to Armada's assembled workforce and access to the supplemental healthcare 
insurance market, and additional synergies to be realized in the future. The goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income 
tax purposes in the future. The contingent consideration is payable if EBlTDA of Armada exceeds amounts defined in the redemption 
agreement. The Armada Eamout can be settled in the Company's Common shares, subject to ce11ain criteria. At December 31, 2017, the 
Armada Earnout is carried at $13.3 million and is re flected within Other liabilities. The Armada Earnout is subject to fair value and 
quarterly measurement, which is a component of net income each period and reflected in Gain on revaluation of contingent consideration. 
In December 2017, the Company settled approximately 82% of the Armada Earnout with Armada Enterprise for $30.6 million. The 
remaining Armada Earnout liability was remeasurcd at a fair value of $ 13.3 million. As a result of the setllcmcnt and remeasurement of 
the Armada Earnout, SBDA recorded a $35.2 million gain in 2017. 

During 2017, Annada's revenues and net income after acquisitions, inclusive of intangible asset amortization expenses, were $24.7 
million and $9.7 million, respectively. 

On May 17, 20 16, Sirius Global Solutions and Florida Specialty Insurance Company partnered to form Florida Specialty Acqu isition LLC 
("FSA"). Sirius Global Solutions provided $ 15.8 million to acquire 100% of FSA's common shares. FSA acquired Mount Beacon 
Ho ldings, LLC and its subsidiaries including Mount Beacon Insurance Company ("Mount Beacon"). 

On Aprill8, 2016, SBDA sold its investment in OncBcacon Insurance Group, Ltd. ("OneBcacon") at fair value to White Mountains for 
proceeds of$178.3 million in connection with the sale ofSBDA to CMIG International and recorded $22. 1 million of Additio nal paid-in 
surplus for the excess o f fair value over the equity method carrying value of OneBeacon. (Sec 1ote 14.). 

On April 18, 20 16, Sirius Global Solutions sold Ashmere Insurance Company to White Mountains for proceeds of $ 18.5 million in 
connection of the sale ofSBDA from White Mountains. 

On February I, 20 16, SBDA sold its investment in Symctra Financial Corporation ("Symctra") for proceeds of $559.8 million, or 
$32.00 per share. (See Note 14.). 

On September 24, 20 15, Si rius Global Solutions completed the sale of Woodridge to Soj ourner Hold ing Co., which resulted in a gain of 
$ 1.0 million recorded in other revenue. 
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Sirius Bermuda lnsunlliCc C ompany Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Fo1· the years ended December 31, 2017,2016, and 201 S 

Note 3. Resen'es for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 

SBDA establishes loss and LAE reserves that are estimates of future amounts needed to pay claims and related expenses for events that have already 
occurred. SBDA also obtains reinsurance whereby another reinsurer contractually agrees to indemnify SBDA fo r all o r a portion of the reinsurance 
risks underwritten by SBDA. Such arrangements, where o ne reinsurer provides reinsurance to another reinsurer, are usually referred to as 
"retrocessional reinsurance" arrangements. SBDA establishes estimates o f amounts recoverable from retrocessional reinsurance in a manner 
consistent with the loss and LAE li ability associated with reinsurance contracts o ffered to its customers (the "ceding companies"), net of an allowance 
for unco llectible amounts. Net reinsurance loss rese rves represent loss and LAE reserves reduced by retrocessional reinsurance recoverable on unpaid 
losses. 

In addition to those risk factors which give rise to inherent uncertainties in establishing insurance loss and LA£ reserves, the inherent uncertainties of 
estimating such reserves are even greater for the reinsurer, due primarily to: ( I) the claim-tail for reinsurers and insurers working through managing 
general underwriters ("MGUs") being further extended because claims are first reported to either the o riginal primary insurance company or the MGU 
and then through one or more intermed iaries or re insurers, (2) the diversity of loss development patterns among d ifferent types of reinsurance treaties, 
facultative contracts or direct insurance contracts, (3) the necessary reliance on the ceding companies, intermediaries and MGUs for in fommtion 
regarding reported claims and (4) the differing reserving practices among ceding companies and MGUs. 

As with insurance reserves, the process of estimating re insurance reserves involves a considerable degree o f j udgment by management and, as of any 
given date, is inherently uncertain. Based on the above, such uncertainty may be larger relative to the reserves for a company that principally writes 
reinsurance compared to an insurance company, and cet1ainty may take a longer time to emerge. 

Upon notification o f a loss from an insured (typically a ceding company), SBDA establishes case reserves, including LAE reserves, based upon 
SJ3DA's share of the amount of reserves reported by the insured and SBDA's independent evaluation of the loss. In cases where avai lable information 
indicates that reserves reported by a ceding company are inadequate or excessive, SBDA establishes case reserves or incuned but not reported 
("ffiNR" ) in excess o f o r below its share of the reserves reported by the ced ing company. Also, in certain instances, SBDA may decide not to establi sh 
case reserves or lBNR, when the information available indicates that reserves established by cedi ng companies are not adequately supported. In 
addition, specific claim in fo rmation reported by insureds or obtained through claim audits can alert management to emerging trends such as changing 
legal interpretations of coverage and liability, claims from unexpected sources or classes of business, and significant changes in the frequency or 
severity o f individual claims where customary. Generally, ceding company aud its are not customary outside the Un ited States. This information is 
o ften used to supplement estimates ofJBNR. 

Generally, initial actuarial estimates of IBNR reserves not related to a specific event are based o n the loss ratio method app lied to each class of 
business. SBDA regularly reviews the adequacy of its recorded reserves by using a variety of generally accepted actuarial methods, including 
historical incurred and paid loss development methods. Estimates of the initial expected ultimate losses involve management judgment and are based 
on historical information for that class of business, which includes loss ratios, market conditions, changes in pricing and conditions, underwriting 
changes, changes in claims emergence, and other factors that may influence expected ultimate losses. If actual loss activity differs substantially from 
expectations, an adjustment to recorded reserves may be warranted . As time passes, loss reserve estimates fo r a given year will rely more on actual 
loss activity and historical patterns than on initial assumptions. 

The actuarial methods are used to calculate a point estimate of loss and LAE reserves fo r each company within SBDA. These point estimates are then 
aggregated to produce an actuarial po int estimate for SBDA. Once a point estimate is established, SI3 DA's actuaries estimate loss reserve ranges to 
measure the sensitivity of the actuarial assumptions used to set the point estimates. These ranges are calculated fro m historical variations in loss ratios, 
payment and reporting patterns by class and type of business. Management t hen establishes an estimate fo r the carried loss and LA E reserves shown 
in the financial statement. The management selection is within the range o f loss reserve estimates provided by SBDA's actuaries and typically above 
the actuarial po int estimate. 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the yea rs ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Summary 

The following table summarizes the loss and LAE reserve activities of SBDA for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015: 

(Millions) 20 17 2016 2015 

Gross beginning balance $ 1,620.1 $ 1,644.4 $ 1,809.8 
Less beginning reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses (29 1.5) (283. 1) (322.2) 

Net loss and LI\E reserve balance 1,328.6 1,36 L.3 1,487.6 
(I) 

0. 1 9.8 Loss and LAE reserves acquired 
Losses and LI\E incurred relating to: 

Current year losses 792.4 583.0 473.9 
Prior years losses (0 .6) (63.7) (51.2) 

Total net incurred losses a nd LAE 791.8 519.3 422.7 

Accretion of fai r value adjustment to net loss and LAE reserves 0.1 0.5 0.7 
Foreign currency translation adjustment to net loss and LAE reserves 36.8 (14.0) (27.2) 
Loss and LAE paid relating to: 

Current year losses 203.3 207.6 162.4 
Prior years losses 375.3 340.7 360. 1 

Tota1loss and LAE payments 578.6 548.3 522.5 

Net ending balance 1,578.8 1,328.6 1,361.3 
Plus ending reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 319.7 29 1.5 283.1 

Gross ending balance $ 1,898.5 $ 1,620.1 $ 1,644.4 

riJ Loss and LAE reserves acquired in 2017 relates to the merger of Jntemational Medica/Insurance Company. Ltd. (See Note 16); Loss and LA E 
reserves acquired in 20/6 relates to SBDA 's purchase of Mount Beacon. 

Loss ant! LAE development- 2017 
During the year ended December 3 1, 20 17, SBDA had net favorable loss reserve development of $0.6 m illion. During the second qum1er of 20 17, 
SBDA strengthened its asbestos loss reserves by $59.0 million, which was offset by reductions of other runoff claims reserves of $41.0 million. There 
were also decreases in prior year loss reserves for the Marine ($5.4 million), Trade credit ($4.2 million), Accident and Health ($4.2 million), and 
Aviation ($ 1.7 million) lines of business. 

Loss am/ LAE devefopment-2016 

During the year ended December 31,201 6, SBDA had net favorable loss reserve development of$63.7 million. The major reductions in loss reserve 
estimates were recognized in the properly ($25. 1 million), aviation and space ($11.5 million), accident and health ($7 .8 mill ion) and marine ($7 .2 
million) lines. The decrease in property was driven primarily by reductions in the u ltimate loss estimates for natural catastrophes that occurred 
between 20 I 0 and 2015 due to less than expected claims activity. 1n addition, $5.4 million was due to 1BNR reduction, as a write-off of an 
uncollectible premium balance due from a Venezuela insurer was recognized as a commission expense. 

Loss and LAE deve/opment- 2015 

During the year ended December 3 1, 2015, SBDA had net favorable loss reserve development of $5 1.2 million. The major reductions in loss reserve 
estimates were recognized in the property ($25.6 million), and casualty and other runoff lines ($13.7 million). The decrease in property was driven 
primarily by reductions in the ultimate loss estimates for natural catastrophes that occurred between 2010 and 2014 due to less than expected claims 
activity. 

Fair value adjustment to loss ami LAE resen•es 
In connect ion with purchase accounting for acquisitions, SBDA is required to adjust loss and LAE reserves and the related reinsurance recoverables to 
fair value on their respective acquired balance sheets. The net reduction to loss and LAE reserves is being recognized through an income statement 
charge ratably with and over the period the claims are settled and is recorded within General and administrative expenses. SBDA recognized $0.1 
million, $0.5 million, and $0.7 million of such charges during 2017,20 16, and 201 5. As of December 31,2017, the pre-tax un-accreted adjustment 
was $2.8 million. 

15 



Sirius Bermuda InsUI·ance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended Dccember31, 2017,2016, and 2015 

Asbestos and Environmental Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Activity 

SBDA's reserves include provisions made for claims that assert damages from asbestos and cnviromnental ("A&E") related exposures primarily at 
Sirius America. Asbestos claims relate primarily to injuries asserted by those who came in contact with asbestos or products containing asbestos. 
Environmental claims relate primarily to pollution and related clean-up cost obligations, particularly as mandated by U.S. federal and state 
environmental protection agencies. In addition to the facto rs described above regarding the reserving process, SBDA estimates its A&E reserves based 
upon, among other factors, !acts surrounding reported cases and exposures to claims, such as policy limits and deductibles, c urrent law, past and 
projected claim activity and past settlement values for similar claims, as well as analysis of industry studies and events, such as recent settlements and 
asbestos-related bankruptcies. The cost of administering A&E claims, which is an important factor in estimating loss reserves, tends to be higher than 
in the case ofnon-A&E clai ms due to the higher legal costs typically associated with A&E claims. 

SBDA's A&E exposure is primari ly from reinsurance contracts written between 1974 through 1985 by acquired companies, mainly MONY 
Reinsurance Company, which was acquired in 199 1 and Christiania General Insurance Company, which was acquired in 1996. Tite exposures are 
mostly higher layer excess of loss treaty and facultative coverages with relatively low limits exposed for each clai m. 

The acquisition of companies having modest portfolios of A&E exposure has been typical of several prior Sirius Global Solutions transactions and is 
likely to be an element o f at least some future acquisitions. However, the acquis ition of new A&E liabi lities is undet1aken only after careful due 
diligence and utilizing conservati ve reserving assumptions in relation to industry benchmarks. ln the case o f portfolios acqu ired previously, the 
exposures arise almost entirely from old assumed reinsurance contracts having small limits ofliability. 

SBDA recorded an increase of$59.0 million, an increase of$13.6 million, and a decrease of$0.5 million of asbestos-related incurred losses and LAE 
on its asbestos reserves in 20 17, 20 16, and 20 I 5. The 2017 incurred losses were primarily a result of an in-depth analysis of SBDA's loss reserves 
undertaken in the second quarter. The 2016 incurred losses were primarily the result of management's monitoring of a variety of mctrics including 
actual paid and reported claims activity. 

SBDA recorded $6. I mi llion, $0.4 million, and $3.0 million of environmental losses in 2017, 2016, and 2015 on its already exist ing reserves. 

SBDA's net reserves for A&E losses were $220.6 million and $180.3 million as o f December 31 , 2017 and 2016, respecti vely. SBDA's asbestos 
three-year net paid survival ratio was approximately 10.2 years and 8.8 years as of December 3 1, 2017 and 20 16. SBDA 's environmental three-year 
net paid survival ratio was approx imately 4.3 years and 4.8 years as of December 3 I, 20 17 and 2016. 

SBDA's reserves for A&E losses as of December 3 I, 20 17 represent management's best estimate of its ultimate liability based on information 
currently available. I lowever, as case law expands, and medical and clean-up costs increase and industry sett lement practices change, SDDA may be 
subject to asbestos and environmental losses beyond currently estimated amounts. SBDA cannot reasonably estimate at the present ti me loss reserve 
additions arising fi·om any such future adverse developments and cannot be sure that allocated loss reserves wi ll be suffic ient to cover additional 
liability arising fi·om any such adverse deve lopments. 

·nte following table summarizes reported A&E loss and LAE reserve act ivities (gross and net of reinsurance) for the years ended December 3 I , 20 17, 
20 16, and 20 15, respectively: 

2017 2016 2015 
(Millions) Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net 
Asbestos: 
Beginning balance $ 187.0 $ 166.4 $ 193.5 $ 172.9 $ 215.8 $ 192.8 

I ncurrcd losses and LAE 96.9 59.0 15.3 13.6 (0.3) (0.5) 
Paid losses and LAE (24.7) (20.8) (2 1.82 (20.1) (22.0) ( I 9.4) 

Ending balance 259.2 204.6 187.0 166.4 193.5 172.9 
Environmental: 

Beginning balance I 8.5 13.9 2 1.5 16.8 22.7 17 .4 
Incurred losses and LAE 2.9 6.1 0.4 0.4 3.0 3.0 
Paid losses and LA E (4.7) {4.0) (3 .42 p.3) {4.2) (3 .6) 

Ending balance 16.7 16.0 18.5 13.9 2 1.5 16.8 
Total asbestos and environmental: 
Beginning balance 205.5 180.3 215.0 189.7 238.5 210.2 

Incurred losses and LAE 99.8 65.1 15 .7 14.0 2.7 2.5 
Paid losses and LAE (29.4) (24.8) (25.2) (23.4) (26.2) (23.0) 

Ending balance $ 275.9 $ 220.6 $ 205.5 s 180.3 $ 215.0 $ 189.7 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended Deccmbc•· 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

Reconciliation of liabilities for unpaid loss and LAE 

The fo llowing table summarizes the ending liabilities for unpaid loss and LAE, net of reinsurance for each of SBDA's major lines of business by 
reportable segment as of December 31, 20 17: 

(Milliom) 
Liabilities for unpaid loss and LAE, net of reinsurance 
Unpaid and allocated LAE reserves, net ofreinsuranee 

Property- excluding Catastrophe 
Property - Catastrophe 
Agriculture 
Accident and Health 
Aviation and Space 
Trade credit 
Marine 
Contingency 
Other and Runoff 

Total unpaid and allocated LAE reserves, net of reinsurance 

Unallocated LAE 

Total unpaid loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance 

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 
Property- excluding Catastrophe 
Property - Catastrophe 
Agriculture 
Accident and Health 
Aviation and Space 
Trade credit 
Marine 
Contingency 
Other and Runoff 

Total reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 

Total unpaid loss and LAE rese1-vcs 

As of 
December 31,2017 

$ 432.6 
161.4 
45.6 

155.8 
93.8 
39.2 
79.9 
11.6 

520.8 

1,540.7 

38.1 
1,578.8 

61.0 
40.1 
2.8 

45.6 
22.9 
14.0 
17.5 
2.6 

113.2 

319.7 

$ 1,898.5 

The fo llowing table group ings, reflecting the Property - excluding catastrophe, Property- catastrophe, Agriculture, Accident and health, Aviation and 
space, Trade credit, Marine, Contingency, and Other and Runoff lines of business include three sections. 

The first table (lop section of grouping) presents, for each of the previous 10 accident years (1) cumulative total undiscounted incurred loss and 
allocated LAE, net of reinsurance, as o f each of the previous I 0 year-end evaluations, (2) total IBNR plus expected development on reported claims as 
of December 31, 20 17, and (3) the cumulative number of reported claims as of December 31, 2017. 

The second table (middle section grouping) presents cumulative paid loss and allocated LAE, net of reinsurance for each of the previous I 0 accident 
years, as of each of the previous 10 year-end evaluations. Also included in this table is a calculation of the liability for loss and al located LAE as o f 
December 3 1, 2017 wh ich is then included in the reconc iliation to the conso lidated balance sheet presented above. The liability as o f December 31, 
20 17 is calculated as the cumulative incurred loss and allocated LAE from the fLrst tab le less the cumulative paid loss and allocated from the second 
table, plus any outstanding liabilities fi·om accident years prior to 2008. 

The third table (bottom section of grouping) is supplementary information about the average historical claims duration as of December 3 1, 2017. It 
shows the weighted average annual percentage payout of incurred loss and allocated LAE by accident year as of each age. For example, the first column 
is calculated as the incremental paid loss and allocated LAE in the fi rst calendar year for each g iven accident year (e.g. calendar year 2009 for accident 
year 2009, calendar year 20 I 0 for accident year 20 I 0) divided by the cumulative incu1Ted loss and allocated LAE as of December 31, 2017 for that 
accident year. The resulting ratios are weighted together using cumulative incurred loss and allocated LAE as ofDecembcr 3 I , 20 17. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Fo1· the years ended Dceembe1· 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

Proputy- excluding Cnlnst rophe 
(/111/Jious) 

lncurr~O losses nnd allocated loss tuljustntcnt expenses, net o(•·cinsurnuce 

Accitl<'nl 2008 2009 20 10 

Yenr UnnutJitcd Unnudited Unaudited 

2008 199.9 202.3 

2009 11 7.3 

20 10 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

Pro~rty- excluding Catnstrophe 

(/lfillicms) 

179.6 

107.7 

156.0 

2011 

Unaudited 

173.6 

97.3 

153.4 

162.3 

Yenr cruJed December 31, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 

Unnuditecl Unnmlitcd Unaudited Unaudited 

173.5 173.6 172.8 173.1 

93.3 93.2 92.1 94.9 

144.7 145.6 140.6 139.6 

149.8 140.3 132.3 130.3 

166.3 152.4 147.3 142.7 

139.7 135.7 124.5 

126.7 129.1 

145.4 

2016 

Unnudiled 

172.4 

93.7 

138.8 

130.9 

137.9 

120.7 

126.1 

137.0 

193.3 

Tolnl 

Cumuhtli\'e pnid losses nnd nllocnted loss ndjus tment expenses, net orreillSurnnce 

Yenr ended DcremberJI, 

Arcit.lent 2008 2009 2010 20ll 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Venr UnnuditedUnnudilct.l Unaudited Uuautlited Unaudited Unnut.lited Unmu..lilcd Unaudited Unaudited 

2008 39.1 111.4 143.0 157. 1 165.9 170.0 170.5 170.5 170.5 

2009 22.6 59.9 79.1 85.8 90.0 91.1 90.9 91.6 

2010 31.0 89.4 116.6 124.5 129.6 131.8 132.3 

20 11 27.4 81.0 105.2 118.3 124.4 126.9 

2012 20.5 86.7 109.9 118.3 121.7 

2013 28.0 73.7 99.0 105.7 

2014 19.4 71.2 98.7 

2015 31.5 95.3 

2016 32.1 

2017 

2017 

171.7 

91.9 

137.1 

131.0 

135.9 

12D.6 

126.6 

139.1 

212.8 

338.8 

1,605.5 

2017 

170.5 

91.6 

132.4 

129.6 

127.1 

109.4 

107.5 

117.5 

130.6 

59.3 

T ulnl 1,175.5 
All outSianding liabilities before 2008. net ofreinsurance----,2'""".6-= 

Liabilities ror loss nnd loss a djus tment expen.scst net of reinsurance 432.6 

Property- excluding Cucnstrophe 

Avernge nnnunlflerc:entnge p11yout ofincurred losses nnt.l nllocnted l..AE by nge, net ofrtinsurance 

Years 2 6 9 10 

Decembrr 31,2017 

TOIHI I UN I{ l inbiliti es plus CumuiAti\'e 
cxpcrted 

De\'dOJlment on rcporled clrtlms Number or reported claims 

0.4 NA 

0.3 NA 

1.6 NA 
0.4 NA 

2.1 NA 

0.5 NA 

2.9 NA 
2.6 NA 

15.6 NA 

156.0 NA 
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For tbe years ended December 31, 201 7, 2016, and 2015 

PropPrly - Cntns t•·uphe 

(~fillions) 

Accident 2008 2009 

\'cnr Unnudlted Un:uuJitetl 

2003 80.7 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

PropPrty - Caunstropl1c 

(Million<) 

82.2 

5 1.2 

Incurred lossesnntl nllornled loss ntljustment expenses, nel ofrtinstu'tH1CC 

Ytll l' ended Dece- mber 31, 

2010 20ll 2012 2013 20 14 20 15 2016 

Unnudlted Unnudiled Uunudlted UnnutliteU Uunudited Unnuditetl Unnudited 2017 

79.1 82.9 31.6 81.5 77.2 77. 1 77.2 77.2 

52.1 50.7 49.7 48.8 48.1 47.8 47.8 47.9 

137.8 135.6 133.0 132.1 124.7 123.8 123.3 122.7 

149.1 154.2 143.6 12 1.8 118.2 117.4 117 3 

71.5 59.8 53.2 5 1.2 51.7 46.8 

78.5 85.2 81.9 8 1.4 80.5 

59.5 61.1 58.1 58.0 

29.0 31.4 29.0 

51.2 49.0 

107,4 

Total 735.8 

Cumulnth·e r nit.llosses and nllorntetl loss adjustment e-xpenses, net ofninsurnnce 

Accident 

Y ear 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

200R 2009 2010 2011 

UnnutlitetJ Unaudited Unnmlitet.l Unnudited 

25. 1 54.9 65.7 73.4 

7.4 32.4 41.1 

50.1 91.4 

15.9 

Yenr ended D«ember 31, 

2012 2013 20 14 

Unnutliletl Unoudiled Unn tu.JiteU 

76.7 76.8 77.0 

44.1 45.2 45,5 

104.2 109.4 112.9 

54.6 % .3 11 5.5 

2.8 26_7 36.4 

11.7 51.6 

9.9 

2015 

Unnudiled 

77.1 

45.6 

115.4 

115.9 

41.1 

65.0 

38.0 

1.8 

2016 

Unnudiled 

77.1 

45.8 

119.3 

116.4 

42.0 

70.2 

44.5 

9.9 

10.4 

2017 

77.2 

45.8 

119.2 

117.3 

43,9 

71.6 

50.4 

17.9 

26.0 

13.3 

Totnl 582.6 

All ootSianding liabilities before 2008, net of reinsurance 8.2 

Lini.Jilitles for loss nnll loss ndjus lrnenl expenses, net ufrcinsurnnce 16 1.4 

P r operty - Cotos trophe 

An•rage ;mnunl pc!rccntnge payout orinrur·rcd losses and nllocnted LAE by nge, net o f n•insurnnce 

Years 4 6 9 10 

Oet'ember31,20 17 

Toto! IIJNH linbillti<s t~ns Cumulnli\'c 
e:tpeclecJ 

Dc, •clopmcul on reported cl:1inn Number o f reported d uims 

NA 
(0.1) NA 
(0.2) NA 

0.1 NA 
0.1 NA 
0.1 NA 
0.6 NA 
0.1 NA 
3.2 NA 

46.0 NA 
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Accident 2008 1009 

Sirius Bermuda lnsurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended Dcccmbe•· 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

lncurretllosscs nud n11oc;~ tetl loss ndjustnH.•nt e-xpenses, net ofreinsunmcc 

Ytnr tnded December 3 1, 0 CC'CJUbtrJJ , 2017 

2010 1011 lOl l 1013 201~ lOIS 2016 TolniiDNH.IInbililies plus expcctcd Cumulnth·e 

Vcnr Unmu.IHed Uuuudilcd Unnmlifed Un:~t~ditecl Unuutlited Unnudited Unaudited Unnm.l itcd Unaudited 2017 0C:l'Clopmcnt on reportetl clftims Number of reported clninu 

----wos--2-1-.4 ~ ~~~~ ~~----u:i----u:i NA 

2009 11.9 9.9 8.7 8.7 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8 5 Nt\ 

2010 12.9 10.9 10.8 10.8 (0.3) N1\ 11.0 10.8 10.8 10.8 

201 1 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

Agricullure 

{Millions) 

Accident 2008 

21.6 21.6 2 1.8 21 8 21.7 

41.0 45.8 45.8 45.7 

9.2 11.0 13. 1 

9.1 8.2 

7. 1 

Cumulntlve 1mhJ lus.scs and nHocntetl loss adjustment cxpensrs, ncl ofreinsur01l CC. 

Yenr ended December31 , 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 201~ 2015 

21.7 

47.0 

13.2 

8.4 

9.2 

21 7 

47.0 

13.0 

8.9 

9.6 

34. 1 31.5 

51.3 

T olul ----z28.5 

2016 

Year Unnuditetl Unnudited Unnudited Unaudited Unnudited Unnudited Unaudited Unuudited Unaudited 2017 
----wog-- -1-.8 ------ru-~~----z5:8~~~~----u:2 

2009 2.2 9.0 8.6 8.6 8.4 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 

2010 0.5 10.7 10.9 10.7 10.7 10.7 10.8 10.7 

2011 1.1 21.4 21.7 2 1.7 2L7 21.7 21.7 

2012 19.0 45.4 45.1 45.6 47.0 47.0 

2013 7.1 10.8 129 13.2 13.0 

20 14 6.5 8.1 8.8 8.8 

2015 1.5 8.1 9.2 

2016 10.2 28.8 

2017 9.6 

Tolnl 183.5 

All ou1Sianding liabililics before 2008, ncl of reinsurance 0.6 

Linbilltirs for loss and loss ndjustmcnl expenses, net ofreiusurnnce ~ 

Agri<'nllnre 

A,·cntge nunual pt"rr•ntuge payout ofincu•·•·cd losses nnd nHO<'ntcd LAE by nge, net ofrcinsnrnnce 

Years 2 4 G 9 10 

(0.3) 

(0.1) 

0.2 

0. 1 

2.2 

33 4 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
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Sirius Bermuda fnsurance Com pany Ltd. 
Notes to Consolilhtlcd Financial Statements 

Fot·thc years ended Dcccmbct· 31,2017, 2016, and 2015 

Tncurretl fusses nnd nllocnted loss ru.ljuslment expenses , net of reinsurnnce. 

Yenr ended December 31, December J l , 2017 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 

Ycnr Unaudited Unnuc..litcd Unnudiled 

2008 76.5 

2009 

2010 

201 1 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

20 16 

20 17 

Acfit.h'! nt umJ Hcnlth 

(A/11/Inus) 

86.6 84. 1 

86.6 84.4 

11 8.7 

2011 2012 

Unnuc..lit ctJ Unnudltcd 

80.7 80.0 

81.5 79,3 

126.2 123.8 

161.6 177.4 

164.3 

2013 201~ 2015 2016 

Unnudifed Unnut.liccd Uunuditccl Un:H1Liitcd 

79.9 79.8 79.8 79.9 

79.1 79. 1 79. 1 79.2 

123.0 122.7 122.7 122.7 

173.0 172.4 172.3 172.3 

161. 1 148.8 148. 1 147.8 

126.5 124 3 11 9,8 119.2 

131.6 132.7 131.1 

154.4 150.2 

177.2 

Totnl 

C umulnth·e paid losses nnd nllocntcd lou Adjustment expenses, net or rclnsurnnce 

Year ended December 31, 

Acddenl 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201 5 2016 

Yenr UnnuLiircdUnnudited Unsuu.Jitctl Unaudited Un:mdilcd Unuuc..litcd Unaudited Uunnditcc..l U1mndiCed 

2008 30.9 65.7 74.2 77. 1 78.3 79.5 79.6 79.6 79.7 

2009 27.7 67.9 76.4 77.9 78.8 78.9 78.9 79.1 

2010 53.3 102.7 119.8 122.0 122.3 122.4 122.5 

2011 71.4 139.6 166.5 171.5 171.9 172.1 

2012 72.5 137.0 147.0 147 4 147.6 

2013 54.7 IOU 115 0 116.4 

2014 59.5 111.7 125.3 

2015 76.0 130.8 

2016 98.5 

2017 

Tola1 

All outstanding liabilities before 2008, net of reinsurance 

Liabilities ror lOSS nnc.J ioSS Adjuslmtlll CXpi"IISf$1 Of f or reii1Stlf811('C 

Arddtnl nnd Health 

Avernge nnnuul percenlnge pnyonl orincurred losses nnd nllocnled LAE by nge, net orreinsurnnce 

Years 6 8 9 

Tolni iDNR llnbililies plus Cumulnli\'e 
expected 

2017 Oe\'clopmcnt on reported clnims Number o f reported clnims 

79,8 NA 
79. 1 0. 1 NA 

122.6 (0.2) NA 
172.2 (0.6) NA 
147.7 (0.7) N 1\ 

118.6 0.7 NA 

13 1.0 2.3 NA 
146.7 2.3 NA 

177.4 16.4 NA 
159.4 62.8 NA 

1,334.5 

2017 

79,7 

79. 1 

122.5 

172.0 

147.6 

117.7 

127.0 

142.3 

117.5 

77.2 

1,182.6 

3.9 

155.8 

10 
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A\'intion nnd Spare 

{11/illlon<) 

Sirius Bermuda Insu rance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

lnt urrtd losse.s nnd allocated loss lldju.stment expen ses, net o freinsurnuce: 

Yenrended Decembe r31 , DccemberJ I, 2017 

Acrident 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 lOJJ 2014 2015 20 16 

Ycnr Un:mdited UnnuLiit ec.l Unnudited Unaudited Unuudited Unnudited Unnuc.Jilet.l Unnudlted UnnmJifed 201 7 

2008~~----n4~~~--3-4-.J---n6----n5--ru 

2009 30.9 34.1 35.4 37.3 35.6 35.5 34.6 32.2 32.3 

2010 42.7 47.9 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

A\·iation and Spnre 

{llllllio11s) 

47.0 

47 6 45.1 43.6 42.7 

42.5 38.1 36.1 34.8 

35,7 34.4 30.3 28.4 

40.7 36.6 33.6 

36.0 38.6 

39.8 

Cumuluti\'C pnid losses and allocnt t'd lnss ndjustment expenses, net ofrdnsurnnre 

Yenr ~nd~d OecernberJI, 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

42.5 42.0 

34.7 35.9 

28,6 29.7 

32.3 33.2 

35.4 34,6 

36.2 40.3 

32.4 32.9 

34.2 

Totnl 348.5 

2016 

\'cnr Unaudited Umw(.}ited Unnudited Unautlitctl Unaudited Unaudited Unnudi tct.l Unaudited Unaudited 2017 
2008---5-.7 --~-0-.7 ---18-.4 ~ ---ns --3-0-.1 __ 3_1_.3 --3-1-.5 ------:D.~--ru 

2009 7.9 16.6 21.6 26.6 27.8 28.8 31.9 31.4 32.3 

2010 12.0 22.3 3 1.9 36.6 38.2 39.3 40.2 40.4 

20 11 10.2 22.8 28.7 31.7 32.9 34.2 35.0 

20 12 7.6 18.5 22.7 24.7 27.4 28.4 

2013 13.6 20.0 24.2 26.9 28,7 

2014 8.1 18.1 23.9 26.5 

2015 10.6 21.4 27.4 

2016 7.9 19.9 

20 17 9.1 

Totnl ~ 
All outstanding liabilities before 200Rt net of reinsurance ----u:4 

Liabilities for Joss null Joss ndju5lment expenses, ncl ofn~insurnnre -m 
----

A\'intion and Spnce 

Avernge nnnunl p~rccntnge payout of incurred losse.s nod nllornft d LAE by age, net o f relnsurnnce 

Years 2 4 6 9 10 

Tolni iONR linbi lilies plus ••r oclcd 

Dc,rclopmcnt on reported clnims 

(0.3) 

(0,5) 

(I. I) 

(1.1) 

( 1.0) 

0. 1 

4.0 

2.7 

4.3 

14.9 

Cumulnti\"c 

NumlJer of reporte d claims 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 

NA 
NA 
NA 
Nil 

NA 
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Trade credit 

(Million<) 

Si.-ius Bermuda Insn•·auce Company Ltd. 
'otcs to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Fo1· the years ended December 3 1, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

lttrue·red losses nntl nllocnted loss ndjustment upeuses, nee ofreinsurnnre 

Ye:1r ended December 3 1, Oeeembt'r 3 1,2017 

i\cddent 1008 2009 2010 2011 1012 20 13 201~ lOIS 2016 

Ye01r Unnmlilcd Unnudilt'd Unnudih~t.l Unnudited Unnudihnl Unnutlitcd Unnudited Unnudilcd Unnudited 2017 
~---9.-5 ---.-4.-3 - --.-5-.4---.-5-.4 ---.-5.-3 ~ - --.-5-.0---.-4.-8 ---~-4-.8 ---.-4-.9 

2009 9.4 10.0 9.8 9.6 9.4 9.4 9.3 9.2 9.3 

2010 14.7 12.8 9.9 10.1 102 10.0 10,0 10.1 

201 1 30.3 30.1 28.4 28.1 28.1 27.5 27.4 

2012 35.8 35.0 33.1 33.3 32.9 32.9 

2013 30.7 29.2 28.2 28.0 28.6 

2014 23.6 23.5 24.3 22.2 

2015 20.9 20.4 19.8 

2016 16.0 13.6 

2017 19.7 

Tolal ---m:s ----
Trndc credit 

(Millions) 

Cumulnth·e pnid losses nnd nllornted loss udjus lmcnt expenses, net ofreinsm·nncc 

Yenr endec.l Deremlu~r3 1, 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 201~ lOI S 2016 

Year Unnmlitctl Unnudited Unnmli tc tl Uunuditrd Unnut.lilet.l Unaudited Unnntlitcd Unnu.dited Unnudited 1017 
-----wog---2-.6 - --7-.5 - --13-.3 --~-4-. 1 ~ ---14-.5 - --14-.7 ---14-.8---.-4.-8---.4-.9 

2009 3.4 7.8 8. 7 9.0 9. 1 9.2 9.3 9.3 9.3 

2010 

2011 

20 12 

2013 

2014 

20 15 

2016 

2017 

1.8 5.4 

6.7 

8.0 8.9 9.7 9.3 9.4 9.7 

18.0 

15.3 

2~.3 

27.6 

12.0 

25.5 

31.9 

20.5 

8. 1 

26.5 

32.7 

23.6 

14.1 

4.7 

26.8 

33.1 

24.8 

18.3 

12.6 

4.7 

26.6 

32.9 

25.2 

19.7 

16.2 

9.2 

3.1 

Totnl~ 
All oulstanding liabilities before 2008, net of reinsurance - - - 7-.5 

Linbilitics ror loss ami loss ndjustmcnl expenses, ncl of rclnsurnnce -m 

AvcrJJge annu:d ptrC'enhtge pnyout ofint'urrct.l lossrs and allot'nled I .. AE by oge, ne:l ofreinsurnm:C!: 

T olnl rBNR linbilil ios plus oxp<cl<d 

Oe\·clopment 00 rPpnrtetJ rJnims 

(0.1) 

(0.1) 

(0.1) 

(0.1) 

(1.2) 

0.1 

1.8 

0.5 

2. 1 

10.0 

Cumulnli,,e 

Number of reported clnims 

NA 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the yca•·s ended Dcccm i.Jcr 31, 2017,2016, and 201 5 

Marine 

(Millicm<) 

lncurt·fd losus nnd nlloralcd loss adjustment expcnsts, nrt ofreinsurnnre 

Year ended December Jl , December 3 1, 2017 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Year UnnmJitcd Unn udited Unnudited UnnudilN.I Unaudited Unnuclilctl Uunndiled Unnudited Unnudited 2017 

----was ------;j6.2 ------s2:5 -----s6:ii ------so:9 ------m ~ ------:r7.8 ------:r7.8 __ 4_7_1 ----;j6.9 

2009 27.9 25.7 24.6 24.3 23,9 23.9 24.0 23.Q 23.9 

2010 32.7 35.5 33.0 32.7 32.8 32,4 31.1 30.8 

2011 

2012 

2013 

201 4 

2015 

2016 

2017 

!\ lnriue 

(Millivm) 

Accident 2008 

37.3 33.3 30.9 

27.7 33.8 

23.8 

31.5 

36.4 

20.9 

23.7 

32.5 

37.8 

19.7 

21.9 

30.2 

Cumulntin~ pnic.l losses and alluruttt.l loss ndjushnenf expensu, uel ofreinsurswre 

Ycnr ended DecembcrJI, 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

31.8 32 0 

38.2 37.1 

18.6 18.4 

19.9 18.6 

32.5 30.2 

28.7 29.7 

38. 1 

Totnl ~ 

2016 

\'enr Unatu.lited UnnuditecJ Unnudiled UnntulitrU Unnudiled Unmu.Jil rt..l Unnudited Unnutl ited Unnmlilet.l 2017 
~---11-.5 -u:o --rrg--4-1-.4 --;j]J---4-5.-1 ~----ru -----;j'5:9~ 

2009 3.6 12.6 17.7 20.1 22.0 22.9 23. 1 23.3 23.3 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

Mnrine 

Years 

5.1 12.4 

4.4 

17.4 19,8 21.6 27.0 27.8 28.8 

14.6 21.9 25.4 282 29.0 29.5 

5.3 14.9 24.4 27.3 29.4 31.3 

2.9 9.5 12.8 14.3 14.7 

4.2 10.4 14.0 15.3 

4.4 12.0 22.4 

6,9 17.7 

7.4 

Tolnl 236.6 

All outstanding liabilities before 2008. net of reinsurance 10.8 

Lin bill ties foJ· Ioss nnd loss ndjushnenl expenses, net of•·cinsurnnce 79.9 

A\•cragc annuniJlrrrt:nlngc payoul ofinrurrt d losses nm.l :dlocnttd LAE by ngc, net of reinsurnnce 

4 6 8 9 10 

Totnl IBNR linbilitieJ plus expected 

Developrncnt on reported C'ln ims 

0.4 

(0.3} 

0.9 

0.2 

0.9 

0.9 

5.0 

20.2 

Cumulatin~ 

Number of reported claims 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
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Conti ngcncy 

(/llilliom) 

Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Lid. 
Notes to Consolidated F inancia l Statements 

For the yea rs ended Deccmbc•· 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

Incurred losses :tnd nllocnted loss ndiushncnl expenses, n('l of reinsurance 

Vc;tr ended DecembcrJ I, Dcccmbrr 31, 2011 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 2011 20 12 2013 201~ 2015 2016 

\'cnr Uunudiled Unaudited Unnudited Unaudited Unnuditcd Unnndiled Unnmlih.• d Unaudited Unuudited 2017 
----wos - - -3-.6 - - -4-.3 ---3-.7 - --3-.8 - --3-.8 - --3-.8 ---3-.8---3-.7---3-.7---3-.7 

2009 6.9 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.4 

2010 5.7 6.1 4.7 4.6 4.4 u 4.2 4.2 

201 1 8.0 7.3 6.8 6.7 6.8 6.8 6.8 

2012 9.9 8.8 8.9 8.7 8,5 8.3 

2013 5.5 4.3 3.6 3.6 3.6 

20 14 4.2 7.1 5.3 4.8 

2015 10.1 9.8 9.2 

2016 18.6 19.0 

2017 9.9 

Tolnl ----,s:9 

Contingency 

(/IIi/lions) 

Cumulntive pnid losses nnd nllocnttd loss 11tljustment expenses, net ofreinsurnnre 

Yenr ended December 31. 

Acdtlenl 2008 2009 2010 20Jl 2012 2013 201~ 2015 2016 

Yen•· Unnudited Unaudited Unnutlitcd Unnudiled Unn1u.lited Unnudiled Unuut.l itcd Unnudited Unuuditcd 2017 
~---2-.1 - --3-.3 - --3-.5 - --3-.6 - - -3-.6-- -3-.6---3-.6 - - -3-.7-- -3-.6-- -3.-7 

~ U ~ U U U U U U M 
2010 1.9 3.5 3.6 3.6 4.0 4.2 4.2 4.2 

2011 2.1 5.9 6.7 6.6 6.7 6.7 6.7 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

Contingenry 

Years 

5.5 7.4 8.7 8.7 8.5 8.3 

1.9 3. 1 3.3 3.3 3.3 

1.7 3.7 4.5 4.6 

2.9 7.3 7.9 

12.6 16. 1 

3.1 

Totnl -----uJ 
All outs1anding liabilities before 2008, net of reinsurance 

Liabililies ror Joss nnd loss ndjnslmenl ex-pcns ~s. uel orn lnsur:anrc 11.6 

A\'erngc annunl perrenhtge payout of inrurretl losses nnd nllocnled LAE by nge, net of rcinsurnnce 

2 4 6 9 10 

Tot:ll I ON H. linbilitits plus c~pected 

Oc,•dopment on rt'portetl t'luims 

0. 1 

(0.1) 

0.2 

0.2 

0,3 

1.1 

4.2 

Cumulnti\'e 

N umber of repurled dnims 

NA 
NA 
NA 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
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Si1·ius Rcrmuda lnsu•·ancc Company L td. 
Notes to Consolidated Financia l Sta tements 

For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

Other nnd Runoff 

(Mil/iOIIS) 

Accident 2008 2009 

Incurred loSS('$ nnd nll or~ted loss ndjuslment expensts, nel of rtinsuranre 

YeAr ended December 3 1. 

2010 2011 2012 2013 201~ 2015 201 6 

UunutJited Unnuditcd Unaudited Unnutl ited Unnudlled Unn uditecJ Unnudiled UnnucJitcd Unn1u.lited 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

620.0 

Olher and Runoff 

(Mil/iolls) 

610.0 

528.0 

593.9 

521.2 

390.8 

588.9 

510.7 

391.9 

306.9 

587.4 587.5 

510.2 510.4 

391.2 392.5 

308.0 309.2 

3.8 4.2 

1.7 

587.3 587.7 589.5 

511.0 511.8 512.9 

393.4 394 7 395.3 

309.7 310.2 311.0 

4.5 4.7 4.6 

0.6 0.6 0.6 

0.6 0.6 0.9 

10.0 16.5 

12.0 

Tulnl ' 

Cumulnti\'c paid losses and nlloculetlloss adjustment e,:penses, net of n-insurnnre 

Yenr ended December JJ, 

Accident 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 201~ 2015 2016 

\'enr Unnudiled Unaudited Unnuditcd Ummdited UnnmliC<!d Unnudited UnnmliCcd Unnudited Unnudited 

2008 33 1.1 453.5 498.5 545.1 553.4 560.6 565.3 569.9 574.0 

2009 289.2 402.6 480.4 483.9 488.5 492.3 495.4 496.7 

2010 225.7 370.5 372.8 377.0 380.2 384.0 385.9 

2011 291.8 293.8 2%.2 298.0 299.7 301.8 

2012 0.3 1.4 1.8 2.4 2.6 

2013 0,7 0.2 0.'1 0.5 

2014 0.3 0.5 

2015 5.4 10.5 

2016 62 

2017 

Tolnl 

All oulstanding liabili li<s before 2008, net of reinsurance 

Linbilllies for loss 1tnd loss ndjusllnent expense~, uct of .-cinsurnnce 

Other' and Runoff 

A\•crnge :mnunl pcrc<!nlnge pnyonl of incurr('.d losses and nllotnlcd LAE by nge, nel ofreinsurnncc 

Years 2 4 6 1 8 9 

2017 

588.3 

5 12.1 

395.4 

310.5 

4.5 

0.7 

1.0 

18.0 

12.4 

10.3 

1,853.2 

20 17 

579.0 

499.2 

387.8 

303.3 

2.5 

0.6 

0.7 

15.7 

10.2 

0.4 

1,799.4 

467.0 

520.8 

10 

Dec:embl"rl l , 2 017 

Tolnl I BNR linbillliu plus 
ex peeled 

Oc\'clopmenl on reported clnitns 

5.2 

8.5 

4.7 

6.2 

1.6 

0. 1 

0.6 

0.9 

9.6 

Cumulnli\'c. 

Number o f reported clninu 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

Nt\ 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 
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Sirius Bermuda insuran ce Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31,201 7,2016, antl2015 

Note 4. Thi•·d pa•·ty reinsura nce 

Tn the normal course o f business, SBDA's subsidiaries seek to limit losses that may arise from catastrophes or other events by reinsuring with third­
party reinsurers. SBDA remains liable for risks reinsured in the event that the reinsurer docs not honor its obligations under reinsurance contracts. The 
effects of reinsurance on SBDA's subsidiaries' written and earned premiums and on losses and LAE were as follows: 

(.Mil/iom) 2017 2016 2015 

Written premiums: 
Direct $ 449.7 $ 368.5 $ 293.7 
Assumed 989.5 900.5 866.8 

Gross written premiums 1,439.2 1,269.0 1, 160.5 
Ceded (350.6) (330.9) (3 12.9) 

Net written l!remiums $ 1,01!1!.6 $ 938.1 s 847.6 

Eamed p•·emiums: 
Direct $ 405.7 $ 35 1.6 $ 277.8 
Assumed 942.2 877.7 868.3 

Gross earned premiums 1,347.9 1,229.3 1,146.1 
Ceded (350.3~ (339.2) (299. 1) 

Net camed J!•·emiums $ 997.6 $ 890.1 $ 847.0 

Losses and LAE: 
Direct $ 294.9 $ 2 16.9 $ 151.3 
Assumed 701.2 463.8 391.9 

Gross losses and LAE 996. 1 680.7 543.2 
Ceded (204.3) ( 16 1.4) ( 120.5) 

Net losses and LAE $ 791.8 s 519.3 $ 422.7 

SBDA's reinsurance protection primarily consists of pro-rata and excess of loss protections to cover accident and health, aviation, trade credit, energy, 
marine, and property exposures. Attachment points and coverage limits vary by region around the world. SBDA's core proportional property 
reinsurance programs provide protection for parts of the non-propotiional treaty accounts written in Europe, the Americas, Asia, the Middle East, and 
Australia. These reinsurance protections are designed to increase underwriting capacity where appropriate, and to reduce exposure both to large 
catastrophe losses and to a fi·equency of smaller loss events. 

SBDA has in place excess of loss retrocessional coverage for its non-U.S. eatihquake-relatcd exposures. This cover was renewed for one year at April I , 
20 17, providing $40.0 million of reinsurance protection in excess of SBDA's retention of $35.0 million and a further $35.0 million of coverage in 
excess of$75.0 million. 

SBDA periodically purchases industry loss warranty ("TLW") contracts lo augment its overall retrocessional program. The following ILW contracts arc 
currently in force: 

Scol!e 
European wind & flood 
European all natural peri ls 
United States all natural peril , exc luding North East 
United Stales, European, Japan wind & earthquake 

( IJ Second event aggregate excess cover 
(l) Multiple layer covers 

Limit 

$7.5 million 
$ 15.0 million 

$5.0 million 
$ 18.0 million 

Trigger 
$7.5 billion 

$ 15.0 bi llion 
$40.0 bi llion 

$5.0-$10.0 billion 

Expil·a tion Date 
April30, 2018 

May3 1, 2018<1> 

June 30, 2018 
December 3 1, 20 18(2

) 

c.. . 
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Si.-ius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the yea rs ended December 31,2017,2016, and 2015 

In connection with the CMTG International acquisition, White Mountains required SBDA to purchase lLWs, referred to as the WTM Covers, to 
mitigate the potential impact of major natural catastl'Ophe events on SBDA's balance sheet pending the close of the sale to CMTG Tntcmational. The 
cost and potential economic benefit provided by the WTM Covers inure to White Mountains. All but one of these contracts expired in May or June 
20 16; the other was a United States second event cover for an industry loss at $15 billion with a limit of $5 million expired on July 15, 2016. Under 
the Stock Purchase Agreement ("SPA") between CMIG lntemational and White Mountains, shortly after the sale of Sirius Ltd., White Mountains paid 
Sirius Ltd. $16.5 million on an after-tax basis, which Sirius Ltd. recorded as paid-in surplus. 

The following table summarizes the WTM Covers purchased in connection with the CMIG International acquisition: 

Scope 
United States first event 
United States first event 
United States second event 
Japan first event 

Limit 
$75.0 mi llion 
$22.5 million 
$45.0 million 
$25.0 million 

Industry Loss Trigger 
$40.0 billion 
$50.0 billion 
$15.0 billion 
$12.5 billion 

At December 3 I, 2017, SBDA had reinsurance recoverables on paid losses of $ 17.5 million and reinsurance recoverables of $319.7 mi llion on unpaid 
losses. At December 31, 2016, SI3DA had reinsurance recoverablcs on paid losses of $ 17. 1 million and reinsurance recovcrables of$291.5 million on 
paid unpaid losses. Because retrocessional reinsurance contracts do not relieve SBD/\ of its obligation to its insureds, the collectability of balances due 
f:i·om SBDA's reinsurers is important to its financial strength. SBOA monitors the financial strength and ratings of retrocessionaires on an ongoing 
basis. Uncollectible amounts historically have not been significant. 

The following table provides a listing of SBDA's gross and net recoverable amounts by the reinsurer's Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC 
("Standard & Poor's") rating and the percentage of total recoverables at December 31, 20 I 7: 

AA 
A 

• ( I ) 
Ratm!j 

BBB or lower 
Not rated 
Total 

$ 

$ 

Gross 
116.9 
153.9 

13.4 
53.0 

337.2 

Collateral Net 
$ 1.0 $ 115.9 

27.9 126.0 
12.5 0.9 
23.9 29.1 

$ 65.3 $ 271.9 
1 
'Standard & Poor's ratings as detailed above are: "AA" (Ve1y strong), "A" (Strong), and "BBB+" and "BBB" (Adequate). 

Note 5. Investment securities 

Net Investment Income 

%of Net Total 
43% 
46% 

1% 
10% 

100% 

S13D/\'s net investment income is comprised primarily of interest income associated with SBDA 's fixed maturity investments, dividend income from its 
equity investments, and interest income from its short-tem1 investments. 

Pre-tax net investment income for the years ended December 3 1, 2017, 2016, and 20 15 consisted of the following: 

(Millions) 2017 2016 2015 
Investment income: 
Fixed maturity investments $ 50.2 $ 57.4 $ 44.6 
Short-tenn investments 1.5 0.7 2.2 
Common equity securities 5.0 4.1 5.9 
Conve11ible fixed maturity investments 0. 1 
Other long-term investments 16.9 4.8 (0.3) 
Jnterest on funds held under reinsurance treaties (0.5) (0.5) 
Total investment income 73.6 66.5 52.0 
Investment cxEenses (9.8) (10.8) ( 12.6) 
Net investment income, ere-tax $ 63.8 s 55.7 $ 39.4 
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Sirius Bermuda Insurance Company Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For thcyeus ended Decembea·3 t , 2017,2016, and 2015 

Net Realized and Unrealized Investment (Losses) Gains 

Net real ized and unrealized investment gains (losses) for the years ended December 3 1,2017, 2016, and 2015 consisted of the fo llowing: 

(!14i/lions) 2017 

Net realized investment (losses) gains, pre-tax $ (23.6) 
Net unrealized investment (losses) gains, pre-tax (23 .2) 

Net realized and unrealized investment (losses) gains, pre-tax (46.8) 
Income taxes attributable to realized and unrealized investment (losses) gains 12.9 

Net a·ealized and unrealized investment {losses) gains, after-tax $ (33.9) 

Net realized im•esfmenf (losses) gains 
Net realized investment gains for !he years ended December 3 1, 2017, 20 16, and 2015 consisted of the following: 

(Millions) 
Fixed maturity investments 
Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 
Net rea lized investment (losses) gains, pre-tax 
Income taxes attributable to realized investment 
(losses) gains 

Net realized investment (losses) gains, after-tax 

(Millions) 
Fixed maturity investments 
Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 

Net realizetl investment ( losses) ga ins, pre-tax 
Income taxes attributable to realized investment 
(losses) ains 

Net realized investment (losses) gains, after-lax 

(Millions) 
F ixed maturity investments 
Common equity securities 
Convertible fixed maturity investments 
Other long-term investments 

Net realized investment (losses) gai ns, pre-tax 
Income taxes attributable to real ized investment 
(losses) ains 

Net a·calized investment (losses) gains, after-tax 

Net realized {losses) gains 

$ (7.6) 

(0.2) 
(7.8) 

1.8 

$ (6.0) 

Net a·ealized (losses) gains 
$ 13.1 

227.0 
( 1.7) 

238.4 

(48. 1) 

$ 190.3 

Net realized (losses) gains 
$ 14.8 

5 1.2 
0.5 
1.5 

68.0 

( 19.9) 

$ 48.1 

2017 
Net foreign currency 

{losses) gains 

2016 

$ (7.6) 

(8.2) 
(15.8) 

2. 1 

$ (13.7) 

Net foreign currency 
(losses) gains 

2015 

$ 44.5 

$ 

4.6 
0.7 

49.8 

(12.9) 

36.9 

Net foreign eul'l'ency 
(losses) gains 

$ 60.0 
9.6 

1.0 

70.6 

( 16.9) 

$ 53.7 

20 16 

$ 288.2 
(238.3) 

49.9 
(12.7) 

s 37.2 

2015 

$ 138.6 
102.9 

241.5 
(49.1) 

$ 192.4 

Total net realized (losses) 
gains reflected in eamings 

$ (15.2) 

(8.4) 
(23.6) 

3.9 

$ (19.7) 

Total net realized (losses) 
gains reflected in earnings 

$ 57.6 
23 1.6 

(1.0) 

288.2 

(6 1.0) 

$ 227.2 

Total net realized (losses) 
gains reflected in earnings 

$ 74.8 
60.8 

0.5 
2.5 

138.6 

(36.8) 

$ 101.8 
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For the years ended December 31,2017, 2016, and 2015 

Net unrealized investment (losses) gains 
The following table summarizes the net umea lized investment (losses) gains and changes in fair value fo r the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, 
and 2015: 

(Millions) 

Fixed maturity investments 
Common equity secu rities 
Other long-te rm investments 

Net unrealized investment (losses) gains, pre-tax 
Income taxes allributable to unrealized investment 
(losses) ains 

Net unrealized investment (losses) gains, after-tax 

(llt/illions) 

Fixed maturity investments 
Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 

Net unrealized investment (losses) ga ins, (JI'e-tax 
Tneome taxes attributable to unrealized investment 
(losses) gains 

Net unrealized investment (losses) gains, after-tax 

(Millions) 

FLxed maturity investments 
Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 

Net unrealized im·estment (losses) gains, pre-tax 
lncome taxes attributable to unrealized investment 
(losses) ains 

Net unrealized investment (losses) gains, after-tax 

Net unr·ealized gains 
(losses) 

$ 6.9 
14.9 
7.9 

29.7 

(4. 1) 

$ 25.6 

Net unrealized gains 
(losses) 

$ (14.6) 
(215.1) 

( 1.1) 

(230.8) 

46.6 

$ (184.2) 

Net unrealized gains 
(losses) 

$ (32.8) 
167.8 
(16.7) 

118.3 

(16.3) 

$ 102.0 

2017 

Net foreign currency 
(losses) gains 

2016 

$ (47.9) 
(2.7) 
(2.3) 

(52.9) 

13.1 

$ (39.8) 

Net foreign currency 
gains (losses) 

2015 

$ ( 10.6) 

$ 

0.5 
2.6 

(7.5) 

1.7 

(5.8) 

Net foreign currency 
(losses) gains 

$ (13.0) 
(4.8) 
2.4 

(15.4) 

4.0 

$ (11.4) 

Total net unrealized (losses) 
gains reflected in earnings 

$ (41.0) 
12.2 
5.6 

(23.2) 

9.0 

$ (14.2) 

Total net unrealized (losses) 
gains reflected in eamings 

$ (25.2) 
(214.6) 

1.5 

(238.3) 

48.3 

$ (190.0) 

Total net unrealized (losses) 
ga ins reflected in earnings 

$ (45.8) 

$ 

163.0 
(14.3) 

102.9 

(12.3) 

90.6 

SBDA recognized gross realized inveshnent gains of $23.6 million, $310.1 million, and $ 154.4 million and gross realized investment losses o f $47.2 
million, $21.9 million, and$ I 5.8 million on sales of investment securities during 2017, 2016, and 2015. 

As of December 3 1, 20 17 and 20 16 SI3DA reported $0.3 million and $7.6 million, respectively, in Accounts payable on unsettled investment purchases. 

As of December 31, 2017, SBDA reported $0.3 million in Accounts receivable on unsettled investment sales. No amount was reported for December 
3 1,2016. 

The following table summarizes the amount of total gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to unrealized investment gains (losses) for Leve l 3 
investments fo r the years ended December 3 1, 2017, 2016, and 2015: 

(Millions) 2017 2016 2015 

Fixed maturity investments $ (0.2) $ (0. 1) $ 
Common equity securities 0. 1 6.6 
Other long-term investments (0.6) 1.2 (0.4) 

Total unrealized investment ( losses) gains, pre-tax- Level 3 investments s (0.7) s 1.1 $ 6.2 
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The components of SBDA's net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses), after-tax, as recorded on the statements of operations and 
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 20 17, 20 16, and 20 I 5 were as follows: 

(Millions) 

Chm1ge in equity in net unrealized (losses) gains from investments in 
unconso lidated amliatcs, pre-tax 
Income tax benefit (expense) 

Change in equity in net unrealized (losses) gains from investments in 
unconsolidated affiliates, after-tax 
Change in net unrealized foreign currency gains (losses) on investments 
through accumulated other comprehensive income, after-tax 

Total investments gains (losses) through accumulated othe•· 
comprehensive income, after tax 
Net realized and unrealized invesbnent gains (losses), after-tax 

Total investment gains (losses) recorded during the period, after-tax 

Investment Holdings 

Fixed mnturi(ll investments 

$ 

s 

201 7 

83 .9 

83.9 

(33.9) 

50.0 

$ 

$ 

2016 

(83. 1) 

(83. 1) 

37.2 

(45.9) 

$ 

$ 

2015 

(35.4) 

2.9 

(32.5) 

(110.7) 

(143.2) 

192.4 

49.2 

The cost or amortized cost, g ross unrealized investment gains (losses), net foreign currency gains (losses), and fair value of SODA's fixed maturity 
investments as of December 3 1, 20 17 and 20 16, were as follows: 

(Millions) 

Fixed maturity investments: 
Debt securities issued by corporations 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 
Foreign govemmcnt, agency and provincial obligations 
U.S. Government and agency obligations 
Preferred stocks 
Municipal obligations 

Total fixed maturity inves tments 

(Millions) 
Fixed maturity investments: 
Debt securities issued by corporations 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 
U.S. Government and agency obligations 
Foreign government, agency and provincial obligations 
Preferred stocks 
Municipal obligations 
Total fixed mat urity investments 

Cost or Gross 
amortized cost unrealized gains 

$ 1,017.0 $ 3.1 
959.5 1.2 
106.8 0.1 
84.2 

9.2 0.3 
3.8 

$ 2,180.5 $ 4.7 

Cost o•· Gross 
amortized cost unrealized gains 

$ 1,462. 1 $ 8.7 
1, 159.5 1.6 

148.7 0.3 
84.8 
10.2 0.3 
1.0 

$ 2,866.3 $ 10.9 

2017 
Net foreign 

Gross currency gains 
unreali:r.edlosses (losses) Fair va lue 

$ (4.8) $ (0.8) $ 1,014.5 
(9.7) (4.2) 946.8 
(0.9) 1.2 107.2 
(0.7) (0.2) 83.3 

0.2 9.7 
3.8 

$ (16.1) s (3.8) $ 2,165.3 

2016 

Net foreign 
Gross currency gains 

unrealized losses (losses) Fair value 

$ (12.9) $ 20. 1 $ 1,478.0 
(13.9) 13.8 I, 161.0 

( 1.7) (0.8) 146.5 
(0.6) 5.2 89.4 

0.3 10.8 
1.0 

$ (29.1) $ 38.6 $ 2,886.7 

'Joe weighted average duration of SODA's fixed income portfolio as of December 3 1, 20 17 was approximately 2.0 years, including short-term 
investments, and approximately 2.3 years excluding short-term investments. 
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The cost or amortized cost and carrying value of SBDA 's fixed maturity investments and convcttible fixed maturity investments as o f December 31, 
20 I 7 and 20 16 is presented below by contractual maturity. Actual maturities could diffe r from contractual maturities because bonowcrs may have the 
right to call or prepay cettain obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

(Millions) 
D ue in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 
Preferred stocks 

Total 

(Millions) 
Due in o ne year o r less 
Due aller one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 
Preferred stocks 

Total 

Debt Securities Issued by Coi]Jorations 

2017 

Cost or amo r tized cost 
$ 106.3 

1,007.4 
71.2 
26.9 

959.5 
9.2 

s 2,180.5 

2016 
Cost o•· a m01·tized cos t 

$ 116.3 
1, 155.0 

398.4 
26.9 

1, 159.5 
10.2 

$ 2,866.3 

Fa it· value 
$ 106.5 

1,004.9 
70.8 
26.6 

946.8 
9.7 

$ 2,165.3 

Fa ir value 

$ 122.5 
1, 17 1.2 

394.8 
26.4 

1, 16 1.0 
10.8 

$ 2,886.7 

The fo llowing table summarizes the ratings and fair value of the corporate debt securities held in SBDA's investment portfolio as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016: 

(11-ti/lions) 2017 

A I\A $ 146.4 
AA 164.9 
A 361.7 
BBB 308.4 
Other 33.1 

Debt secUI·ilies issued by corporationsl•l $ 1,014.5 

r/J Credit ratings are assigned based on ti-e following hierarchy: I) Standard & Poor's and 2) Moody's Invest a· Service ("Moodys'~ . 

Mortgage-backed, Asset-backed Securities 

$ 

2016 

150.8 
219.6 
478.1 
620.2 

9.3 
$ 1,478 .0 

SBDA purchases commercial mortgage-backed secunttes ("CM13S") and residential mortgage-backed securities (" RMBS") with the goal of 
maximizing risk adj usted returns in the context of a di versi fied portfolio. SBDA considers sub-prime mortgage-backed securities as those that have 
underlying loan poo ls that exhibit weak cred it characteristics, or those that arc issued from dedicated sub-prime she lves or dedicated second-lien shelf 
registrations (i.e., SBDA considers investments backed primarily by second-liens to be sub-prime risks regardless of credit scores or other mctrics). 
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SBDA categorizes mortgage-backed securities as "non-prime" (also called "All A" or "A-") if they are backed by collateral that has overall credit 
4uality between prime and sub-prime based on SBDA's review of the characteristics o f their underlying mortgage loan pools, such as credi t scores and 
financial ratios. SBDA's non-agency residential mmigage-backcd portfolio is generally moderate-term and structurally senior. SBDA docs not own any 
collatera lized loan obligations or any collateralized debt obligations. 

2017 2016 
(Mil!ioi1S2 Fail· Value Levell Lcve1 2 Lcvel3 Fair Value Level 1 Levcl 2 Level 3 
Mortgage-bacl(ed sec111·ities: 
Agency: 
Government National Mortgage 

$ 0. 1 $ $ 0.1 $ $ 77.3 $ $ 77.3 $ Association 
Federal Nationa l Mortgage Association 96.7 96.7 282. 1 282. 1 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 137.8 137.8 88.2 88.2 
Total Agency(!) 234.6 234.6 447.6 447.6 
Non-agency: 
Residential 12.7 12.7 82.0 82.0 
Commercial 224. 1 224. 1 163.4 157.0 6.4 
Tota l Non-agency 236.8 236.8 245.4 239.0 6.4 
Tota l Mortgagc-bacl(cd Securities 471.4 471.4 693.0 686.6 6.4 
Asset-bacl(ed Sccul'ities: 
Credit Card Receivables 53.0 53.0 99. 1 99. 1 
Vehicle Receivables 314.6 314.6 260.6 260.6 
Other 107.8 107.8 108.3 96.3 12.0 
Total Asset-Bac l(ed Securiti es 475.4 475.4 468.0 456.0 12.0 
Tota l Moa·tgage and Asset-bacl<ed s 946.8 s $ 946.8 $ s 1,161.0 $ - $ 1, 142.6 $ 18.4 
Securities 

(I) Represents publicly traded mortgage-backed securities which carl)' tile full fait II and credit g uaranty of the U.S. government (i.e. , GNkfA) or are 
guaranteed by a government sponsored entity (i.e., FNMA, FHLMC). 

Com/11011 equi(l' securities a11d Other lo11g-term i11 vestmeuts 
The cost or amortized cost, gross muealized investment gains and losses, net foreign currency gains and losses, and carrying values ofSBDA's common 
equity securities and other long-term investments as of December 3 1, 20 17 and 201 6, were as follows: 

(Millions) 

Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 

(Millions) 

Common equity securities 
Other long-term investments 

Cost or amortized 
cost 

$ 275. 1 
$ 438. 1 

Cost or amortized 
cost 

$ 120.6 
$ 11 5.8 

Gross unrealized 
gains 

$ 29.3 
$ 14.2 

G ross unrealized 
gains 

$ 0. 1 
$ 4.2 

Other long-term investments consist of the fo llowing as of December 3 1, 2017 and 20 16: 

(Millions) 

Hedge funds and private equity funds 
Limited liabi lity companies and private debt and equity securities 
Related-party debt instruments (See Note 16) 

Total other long-term investments 

201 7 

G ross unrealized Net foreig n currency 
losses gains (losses) Ca rrying value 

$ (5. 1) $ (0 .1 ) $ 299.2 
$ (4. 1) $ 3.9 $ 452. 1 

2016 

Gross unrealized Net foreign currency 
losses gains (losses) Carrying value 

$ {2.7) $ $ 11 8.0 
$ (2. 1) $ 6.9 $ 124.8 

2017 Canying Value 2016 Carrying Value 
$ 205.3 

55.2 
19 1.6 

s 452.1 

$ 85.4 
39.4 

s 124.8 
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Hedge Funds and Private Equity Funds 
SBD/\ holds investments in hedge funds and private equity funds, which arc included in other long-term investments. The fair value of these 
investments has been estimated using the net asset value of the funds. As of December 31, 2017, SBDA held investments in 6 hedge funds and 29 
private equ ity funds. The largest investment in a single fimd was $3 1.4 million as of December 31, 20 17 and $24.2 mill ion as of December 3 1, 20 16. 

The following table summarizes investments in hedge funds and private equity interests by investment objective and sector as of December 3 1, 20 17 
and 2016: 

(Millions) 

Hedge funds: 
T,ong/sh01t credit & distressed 
Other 

Total hedge funds 
Private equity funds: 
Energy in frastructure & services 
Multi-sector 
Healthcarc 
Life settlement 
Manufacturing/Industrial 
Private equity secondaries 
Real estate 
Venture capital 

Total private equity funds 

Total hedge and private equity fu nds 
included in other long-term investments 

2017 

Carrying Value 

$ 

$ 

31.5 
3.2 

34.7 

73.5 
35.0 
23.4 
21.5 
15.9 
1.1 
0.2 

170.6 

205.3 

Unfunded 
C ommitments 

$ 

56.4 
1.0 

28.6 

5.1 
1.0 

92.1 

$ 92.1 

2016 

Carrying Va lue 

$ 

$ 

3.7 

3.7 

50.7 
8.9 

19 .4 

0.4 
1.8 
0 .3 
0.2 

81.7 

85.4 

Unfunded 
Commitments 

$ 

60.0 
1.5 

24.4 

19.6 
1. 1 

106.6 

$ 106.6 

Redemption o f investments in certain hedge funds is subject to restrictions including lock-up periods where no redemptions or withdrawals are allowed, 
restrictions on redemption frequency, and advance notice periods tbr redemptions. Amounts requested for redemptions remain subject to market 
fluctuat ions until the redemption effective date, which generally falls at the end of the dctined redemption period. 

The following summarizes the December 3 1, 20 17 fair value of hedge funds subject to restrictions o n redemption frequency and advance notice 
period requirements for investments in active hedge funds: 

Notice Pel'iod 

Redemption Frequency 
(Millions) 30-59 da~s notice 60-89 da>•s notice 90-119 days notice 120+ da~s notice Total 

Monthly $ $ 3 1.5 $ $ $ 3 1.5 
Quarterly 1.0 1.0 
Semi-annual l.O 1.0 
Annual 1.1 0.1 1.2 

Total $ 1.0 $ 32.5 $ 1.1 s 0.1 $ 34.7 

Certain of the hedge fimd and private equity fund investments in which SBDA is invested are no longer act ive and arc in the process o f disposing of 
their underlyi ng investments. Distributions from such fimds are remitted to investors as the fund's underlying investments are liquidated. As of 
December 3 1, 2017, no distributions were outstanding from these investments. 

Investments in private equity funds are generally subject to a "lock-up" period during which investors may not request a redempt ion. Distributions 
prior to the expected termination date of the fund may be limited to dividends or proceeds arising from the liquidation of the li.md's underlying 
investments. In addition, certain private equity funds provide an option to extend the lock-up period at either the sole d iscretion of the fund manager 
or upon agreement between the fund and the investors. 

As of December 31, 20 17, investments in private equ ity funds were subject to lock-up periods as follows: 

(lvlillions) 1 -3 years 3 - 5 years 5- 10 years Total 
Private Equity Funds - expected lock up period remaining $ 7. 1 $ 6. 1 $ 157.4 $ 170.6 
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Investments Held ou Deposit Ol' as Collateral 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 investments of $548.2 million and $406.0 million, respectively, were held in trusts required to be maintained in 
relation to various reinsurance agreements. SODA's consolidated reinsurance operations arc required to maintain deposits with certain insurance 
regulatory agencies in order to maintain their insurance licenses. The f.1 ir value of such deposits which are included within total investments totaled 
$548.4 million and $413.0 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Note 6. Fair value measurements 

Fair value measurements as of Decem be•· 31, 2017 
Fair value measurements are categorized into a hierarchy that distinguishes between inputs based on market data from independent sources 
("observable inputs") and a reporting entity's intemal assumptions based upon the best information available when external market data is limited or 
unavailable ("unobservable inputs"). Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities have the highest priority ("Level I"), followed 
by observable inputs other than quoted prices, including prices for similar but not identical assets or liabilities ("Level 2") and unobservable inputs, 
including the reporting entity's estimates of the assumptions that market participants would usc, having the lowest priority ("Level 3"). 

As of both December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 98% and 96% of the investment portfolio, excludi11g investments accounted for at net asset 
value as a practical expedient for fair value and related-party debt instruments held at amortized cost, was recorded at fair value was priced based 
upon quoted market prices or other observable inputs. Investments valued using Level I inputs include fixed maturity investments, primarily 
investments in U.S. Treasuries, common equity securities and short-term investments, which include U.S. Treasury Bills. Investments valued using 
Level 2 inputs are primarily comprised of fixed maturity investments, which have been disaggrcgated into classes, including debt securities issued by 
corporations, municipal obligations, mortgage and asset-backed securities, foreign government obligations and preferred stocks. Investments valued 
using Level 2 inputs also include certain ETFs that track U.S. stock indices such as the S&P 500 but are traded on foreign exchanges. Fair value 
estimates for investments that trade infrequently and have few or no observable market prices are classified as Level 3 measurements. Level 3 fair 
value estimates based upon unobservable inputs include SODA's investments in certain debt securities, including asset-backed securities, and equity 
securities where quoted market prices are unavailable or are not considered reasonable. SBDA determines when transfers between levels have 
occurred as of the beginning of the period. 

SBDA uses brokers and outside pricing services to assist in determining fair values. For investments in active markets, SBDA uses the quoted market 
prices provided by outside pricing services to determine fair value. The outside pricing services SBDA uses have indicated that they will only provide 
prices where observable inputs are available. In circumstances where quoted market prices are unavailable or are not considered reasonable, SODA 
estimates the fair value using industry standard pricing models and observable inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, 
issuer spreads, benchmark securities, bids, olfers, prepayment speeds, reference data including research publications, and other relevant inputs. Given 
that many fixed maturity investments do not trade on a daily basis, the outside pricing services evaluate a wide range of fixed maturity investments by 
regularly drawing parallels from recent trades and quotes of comparab le securities w ith similar features. The characteristics used to identify 
comparable fixed maturity investments vary by asset type and take into account market convention. 

SODA's process to assess the reasonableness of the market prices obta ined fi·om the outside pricing sources covers substantially all of its fixed 
maturity investments and includes, but is not limited to, evaluation of model pricing methodologies, review of the pricing se rvices' quality control 
processes and procedures. Prices provided by the pricing services that vary by more than 5% and $1.0 mill ion tl·om the expected price based on these 
procedures are considered outliers. Also considered outliers are prices that haven' t changed from period to period and prices that have trended 
unusually compared to market conditions. In circumstances where the results of SBDA's review process does not appear to support the market price 
provided by the pricing services, SBDA challenges the price. If SBDA cannot gain satisfactory evidence to support the challenged price, it relies upon 
its own pricing methodologies to estimate the fair value of the security in question. 

The valuation p rocess above is generally applicable to all of SBDA 's fixed maturity investments. The techniques and i11puts specific to asset classes 
within SBDA's fixed maturity investments fo r Level 2 securities that use observable inputs are as follows: 

U.S. Government and agency obligations 
The fair value of U.S Government and agency obligations is determined from an evaluated pricing model that uses information from market makers, 
brokers-dealers, buy-side firms, and analysts along with general market information. Key inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, material 
event notices and new issue data, as well as broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and reference 
data including type, coupon, credit quality ratings, duration, credit enhancements, geographic location, and market research publications. 

Debt securities ismetl by corporations 
The fai r value of debt securities issued by corporations is determined from an evaluated pricing model that uses information from market sources and 
integrates relative credit information, observed market movements, and sector news. Key inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker­
dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and refe rence data including sector, coupon, credit qua lity ratings, 
duration, credit enhancements, early redemption features, and market research publications. 
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!lfortgage-baclfed am/ asset-backed securities 
The fair value of mortgage and asset-backed securities is determined from an evaluated pricing model that uses in formation from market sources and 
leveraging s imilar securities. Key inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, underlying tranche cash flow data, collateral performance, p lus 
new issue data, as well as broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and reference data including 
issuer, vintage, loan type, collateral attributes, prepayment speeds, default rates, recovery rates, cash flow stress testing, credit quality ratings, and 
market research publications. 

Municipal obligations 
The fair value of municipal obligations is determined fi·om an evaluated pricing model that uses information from market makers, brokers-dealers, 
buy-s ide firms, and analysts along with general market information. Key inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, issuer financial statements, 
material event notices and new issue data, as well as broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and 
reference data including type, coupon, credit quality ratings, duration, credit enhancements, geographic location, and market research publications. 

Foreign govemment, agency, and provincial obligations 
The fair value of foreign government obligations is determined from an evaluated pricing model that uses feeds from data sources in each respective 
country, including active market makers and inter-dealer brokers. Key inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, two­
sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, local exchange prices, foreign exchange rates and reference data including coupon, credit quality 
ratings, duration, and market research publications. 

Preferred l'IOclls 
The fair value of prefen ed stocks is determined from an evaluated pricing model that calcu lates the appropriate spread over a comparable security for 
each issue. Key inputs include exchange prices (underlying and conunon stock of same issuer), benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer 
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and reference data including sector, coupon, credit quality ratings, 
duration, credit enhancements, early redemption features, and market research publications. 

Level 3 valuations are generated fi·om techniques that use assumptions not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect SBDA's 
assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the in vestment. Generally, certain securities may start out as Level 3 when they are 
originally issued but as observable inputs become available in the market, they may be reclassified to Level 2. 

SODA employs a number of procedures to assess the reasonableness of the fair value measurements tbr its other long-tenn investments, including 
obtaining and reviewing the audited annual financial statements of hedge funds and private equity funds and period ically discussing each fi.md's 
pricing with the fund manager. However, s ince the fund managers do not provide sufficient information to evaluate the pricing inputs and methods fo r 
each underlying investment, the inputs are considered to be unobservable. Accordingly, the fair values of SBDA 's investments in hedge fi.mds and 
private equity funds have been classified as Level 3 measurements. The fair value of SODA's investments in hedge f1mds and private equity fi.mds has 
been determined using net asset value. 
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Fair Value Measurements by Lel'el 
ll1e fo llowing tables summarize SBDA 's financial assets and liabilities measured at fai r value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 by level: 

2017 
(!1illions) Fair Value Level I Tn~uts Level2 Tnruts Level 3 Inputs 

Assets measured at fail" vn lue 
Fixed Maturities: 
U.S. Government and agency obligations $ 83.3 $ 81.7 $ 1.6 $ 
Debt securities issued by corporations 1,014.5 1,014.5 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 946.8 946.8 
Foreign government, agency and provincial obligations 107.2 94.8 12.4 
Preferred stocks 9.7 1.7 8.0 
Municipal obligations 3.8 3.8 
Total fixed maturity investments 2,165.3 176.5 1,980.8 8.0 
Sh01i-term investments 587.9 529. 1 58.8 
Common equity securities 299.2 298.6 0.6 
Other long-term investments(') 55.2 55.2 

Total investments $ 3,107.6 $ 1,004.2 $ 2,040.2 s 63.2 
Derivative instruments 4.2 4.2 
Tota l assets measured at fair value $ 3,111.8 s 1,004.2 s 2,040.2 s 67.4 

Liabilities measured at fail· value 
Contingent consideration liabilities $ 13.3 $ $ $ 13.3 

Total liabilities measured at fair value $ 13.3 $ $ $ 13.3 

U) Excludes canJ'ing value of$396.9 associaled with hedge funds and private equity funds which fair value is measured a/net asset value us ing the 
practical expedient and relaled-party debt inslmments a/ amortized cos/. 

2016 
(Millions) Fair Value Level I Inputs Level 2 ln(!uts Level3 Tnl!uts 
Assets measured at fai•· value 
Fixed Maturities: 
U.S. Government and agency obligations $ 89.4 $ 86.2 $ 3.2 $ 
Debt securities issued by corporations 1,478.0 1,478.0 
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 1, 161.0 1,142.6 18.4 
Foreign government, agency and provincial obligations 146.5 18.1 128.4 
Preferred stocks 10.8 1.8 9.0 
Municipal obligations 1.0 1.0 
Total fixed maturity investments 2,886.7 104.3 2,755.0 27--' 
Short-tem1 investments 498.8 459.6 39.2 
Common equity securities 118.0 11 8.0 
Other long-term investments<'> 29. 1 29. 1 
Total investments $ 3,532.6 $ 68 1.9 $ 2,794.2 $ 56.5 
Derivative instruments 5.8 5.8 

Total assets measured at fair value $ 3,538.4 $ 681.9 $ 2,794.2 s 62.3 

L iabilities measured at fai1· value 
Contingent consideration liabilities $ $ $ $ 

Total liabilities measured a t fair va lue $ s $ $ 

r/) Excludes carrying value of $95.7 associated with hedge fimds and private equily funds which fair value is measured at nel a sse/ value using !he 
praclical e;.pedienl. 

~: .. 
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Rollforward of Level3 Fair Value lVIcasuremcnts 

The following tables present changes in Levcl 3 for financial instruments measured at fair value for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016: 

(Millions) 

Balance at January I , 2017 
Total realized and unrealized gains 
Foreign currency losses through Other 

Comprchens i ve I ncomc 
Purchases 

Sales/Settlements 

Transfers out<2> 

Balance at December 31, 2017 

Fixed Maturities 
$ 27.7 

s 

(4.9) 

(0.1) 
4.7 

( 1.0) 

(18.3) 

8.1 

Other 
long-term 

investments(!) 

$ 29.1 

s 

(0.5) 

1.0 
27.0 
(1.4) 

55.2 

2017 

Derivative 
instruments assets 

&(liabilities) 
$ 5.8 

(I.S) 

$ 4.3 

Contingen t 
consideration 

liabilities 
$ 

35.2 

79. 1 

30.6 

s 13.3 

(I) Excludes canJiing value of$396.9 associated with hedge funds and private equity funds which fair value is measured a/net asset value using the 
practical expedient and related-party debt inslmments at amortized cos/. 
11' Transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 

(Millions) Fixed Matudtics 
Balance at January I , 2016 $ 3.0 
Total realized and unrealized gains (0. 1) 
Foreign currency losses through Other Comprehensive 

Income 
Purchases 26.7 

Sales/Settlements 

Transfers out<2l (2.2) 

Balance a t Decembcr31, 201 6 s 27.4 

Othe1· 
long-term 

investments(!) 

$ 19.7 
1.1 

(0.2) 
9. 1 

(0.6) 

s 29.1 

2016 
Derivative 

ins! ru mcnts assets 
&( liabilities) 

$ (1.5) 
5.2 

2. 1 

$ 5.8 

Contingent 
consideration 

liabilities 
$ 

$ 

11 Excludes canJ!ing value of $95.7 associated with hedge funds and private equity funds which fail' value is measured at net asset value using the 
practical expedient. 
!1) Transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 

Fair Value Afeasurements - transfers betwee/1 levels 
During 2017, two fixed maturity security classi fied as Leve13 measurements in the prior period was recategorized as a Level2 measurement because 
quoted market prices tbr similar securities that were considered reliable and could be validated against an alternative source were available as o f 
December 3 1, 20 17. These measurements comprise " Transfers out" of Level 3 and "Transfers in" to Level 2 of $ 18.3 mill ion for the period ended 
December 3 I , 20 17 

During 2016, one fixed maturity security elassi lied as Level 3 measurements in the prior period was recategorized as a Level 2 measurement because 
quoted market prices for similar securities that were considered reliable and could be validated against an alternative source were available as of 
December 3 1, 20 16. These measurements comprise "Transfers out" of Level 3 and "Transfers in" to Level 2 of $2.2 million for the period ended 
December 3 1, 2016 
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Signi ficant Unobservable Inputs 

The table below presents information about the signi ficant unobservable inputs used for recurring fair value measurements for certa in Level 3 
instruments as of December 3 1, 20 17 and December 31, 20 16, and includes only those instruments for which in formation about the inputs is reasonably 
avai lable to us, such as data from independent third-party valuation service providers and from internal valuation models. 

2017 

Private equity securities NR Share price of recent transaction $25.0 
Private equity securities (2) NR Multiple of GAAP book value $17.2 
Private debt instrument <2> NR Purchase price of recent transaction $9.0 
Preferred stock (lJ NR Purchase price of recent transaction $6.0 
Private debt instrument <2> NR Internal valuation model $2.5 
Preferred stock 12

) NR Share price of recent transaction $2.0 
Private debt instrument (l) NR Purchase rice of recent transaction $1.5 
1 Credit ratings are assigned based Oil the following hierarchy: I) Standard & Poor's and 2) Moody's. 
llJ As of December 31, 2017 each asset type comists of one security. 

(Millions) 2016 

Description Rating11> Valuation Techniquc(s) Fair Value 

Asset-backed securities (2) AAA Broker pricing $18.4 
Private equity securities <

3> N R Multiple ofGAAl> book value $16.1 
Private debt instrument (3) NR Purchase price of recent transaction $9.0 
Preferred stock Pl NR Purchase price of recent transaction $6.0 
Private debt instrument <3> N R Purchase price of recent transaction $3.3 
Preferred stock <3> NR Average fair value $3.0 
Common stock warrant <3> NR Average fair value $0.5 

ri; Credit ratings are assigned based on the following hierarchy: I) Standard & Poor's and 2) Moody's. 
ll) As of December 31, 2016 each asset type consists of 111'0 securities. 
(J) As of December 31, 2016 each asset fJ'lJe consists of one security. 

Financial instruments disclosed, but not carried at fair value 

Unobservable In ut 
Purchase price $3 1.25 

Book value multiple LOX 
Purchase price $9.0 

Average share price $0.6 
Purchase price less pay down $2.5 

A veragc share price $ 1 I. 79 
Purchase price $1.5 

U nobservable Input 

Purchase price $18.4 
Book value multiple I .OX 

Purchase price $9.0 
Average share price 0 .6 

Purchase price less pay down $3.3 
Average share price 86.3 

Discount rate rage 14-17% 

SBDA uses various financia l instruments in the nom1al course of its business. The carrying values of Cash, Accrued investment income, ce11ain other 
assets, Accounts payable on unsettled investment purchases, certain other liabilities, and other fmancia l instruments not included in the table below 
approximated their fair values at December 3 1, 2017, due to their respective short maturities. As these financial instruments arc not actively traded, 
their respecti ve fair values are c lassified within Level 3. The following table includes financial instruments for which the carrying value d iffers from 
the estimated fa ir values at December 3 I , 2017 and 2016: 

(Millions) 

Assets : 
IMG Term Note and Credit Facility 
SAHC2 Note 

L iabilities: 
O ld Lyme Note 

December 31,2017 

Fair Value 

$ 11 8.6 
$ 79. 1 

$ 

Carrying Value 

$ 
$ 

$ 

111 .6 
80.0 

Dccember31, 2016 

Fai r Va lue 

$ 
$ 

$ 3.7 

Carrying Value 

$ 
$ 

$ 3.7 

The fair value estimates at December 3 1, 20 17 for the IMG Term Note and Credit Faci lity and the SAHC2 Note were determined by internal pricing 
and are considered a Level 3 measurement. The fair value estimate at December 3 1, 20 16 for the Old Lyme Note was determined by internal pricing, 
based on the expected amount due to the sellers of Old Lyme, and is considered a Level 3 measurement. 
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NOTE 7. Goodwill and intangible assets 

Goodwill represents the excess of the amount paid to acquire subsidiaries over the fair value of identiliable net assets at the date of acquisition. 
intangible assets consist primarily o f policyho lder relationships, distribution relationships, trade names, customer relationships, infonnation teclmology, 
and insurance licenses. Finite-life intangible assets are measured at their acquisition date fair values, are amortized over the ir economic Jives, and 
presented net of accumulated amortization on the balance sheet. 

Goodwi ll is not amortized, but rather is eva luated for impairment on an mmual basis, or whenever ind ications of potential impairment exist. In the 
absence of any indications of potential impairment, the evaluation of goodwill is perfom1ed during the fourth qumtcr of each year. SBDA uses widely 
accepted valuation techniques to determine the fair value of its reporting units used in its mmual goodwill impairment analysis. SBDA's valuation is 
primarily based on qualitative and quantitative assessments regm·ding the fair value of the reporting un it relative to its carrying value. SBDA models the 
fair value oft he reporting unit based on projected earnings and cash flows of the reporting unit. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are evaluated for impairment at least annually and when events or changes in circumstances indicate that it is more 
likely than not that the asset is impaired. 

The following table shows the change in goodwill, intangible assets with an indefinite life, and intangible assets with a linite life during years ended 
December 3 1, 2017 m1d 20 16: 

(Millions) 

Net balance at December 31, 2015 
Additions 
Amortization 

Net balance at Dcecmbet· 31, 2016 
Additions 
Amortization 

Net balance at Decem bet· 31 , 2017 

s 

s 

Goodwill 

122.7 

122.7 

Inta ngible 
assets w ith an 
indefinite life 
$ 5.0 

5.0 

$ 5.0 

$ 

Intangible 
assets with a 

fin ite life 

s 

81.5 
(4. 1) 

77.4 

s 

s 

Total 

5.0 

5.0 
204.2 

(4. 1) 

205.1 

We estimate that the annual amortization expense for our total intangible assets with a finite life will be approximately $5.4 mil lion per year in 2018 
through 2022. The estimated remaining useful lives of these assets range from 7.5 to 22.5 years. 

Note 8. Debt and standby le tters of credit faci lities 

SBDA's debt outstanding as of December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016 consisted of the fo llowing: 

(Millions) December 31, 2017 Effective Rate I I) December 31, 2016 Effective Rate ( I) 

Old Lyme Note $ $ 3.7 3.6% 
Total debt $ -- $ 3.7 

rl) Effective rate considers the effect of the debt issuance costs. 

Old Lyme Note 
On April 25, 20 17, SBDA made a payment of$3.8 million to retire the Old Lyme Note that was issued as part of the acquisition of the runoff loss 
reserve portfo lio of Old Lyme Insurance Company Ltd. As part of the acquisition, SBDA entered into a five-year $2. 1 million purchase note that was 
subject to upward adjustments fo r favorable loss reserve development (up to 50% of $6.0 million) and downward adjustments for any adverse loss 
reserve development. From inception, SBDA had favorable loss reserve development of $3.4 million on the Old Lyme loss reserve position that 
resulted in an increase of$1.7million on the Old Lyme Note. 

Stand By Let-ter of Credit Facilities 
On November 8, 20 I 7, Sirius International entered into four stand by letter of credit facility agreements totaling $2 I 5 million to provide capital support 
fo r Lloyds Syndicate 1945. The lirst letter of credit is a renewal of a $ 125 million faci lity with Nordea Bank Finland pic, $100 mi llion of which is 
issued on an unsecured basis. The second letter of credit is a $25 million secured facility with Lloyds Bank pic. Lloyds Bank pic had previously 
participated on this program but at a different capacity. The third letter of credit agreement is a $30 million unsecured faci lity with Bat·clays Bank pic. 
The fom1h le tter of credit agreement is a $35 million tacility with DNB Bank ASA London Branch, $25 million of wh ich is issued on an unsecured 
basis. Each facility is renewable annually. The above referenced facilities are subject to various aflirmati ve, negative and linancial covenants that the 
Company considers to be customary for such borrowings, including cet1ain minimum net worth and maximum debt to capitalization standards. 
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Sir ius Intemational has other secured letter of credit and trust arrangements with various financial institutions to support its insurance operations. As of 
December 31, 20 17 and December 3 1, 20 16, these secured let1cr of credit and trust arrangements were collateralized by pledged assets and assets in 
trust of SEK 2. 1 billion and SEK 1.8 billion, or $261.2 million and $203.0 mil lion (based on the December 3 1, 2017 and December 31, 2016 SEK to 
USD exchange rates). As of December 31, 2017 and December 3 1, 20 16, Sirius America's trust arrangements were collateralized by pledged assets and 
assets in trust of$55.8 million and $18.8 million. As of December 3 1, 2017, Sirius Bermuda's trust arrangements were collateralized by pledged assets 
and assets in trust of$ 123.3 million. At December 3 1,2016, Sirius Bermuda did not have any trust arrangements that were collateralized by pledged 
assets and assets in trust. 

Debt and Standby Letter of Credit Facility Co,•enants 
As of December 31, 2017, SBDA was in compliance with all of the covenants under the 2016 SIG Senior Notes, 2017 SEK Subordinated Notes, the 
Nordea facility, the Lloyd's Bank facility, Barclays Bank facil ity, and the DNB Bank ASA London Branch facility. 

Interest 
SBDA did not incur any interest expense in 20 17. Total interest expense incurred by SBDA for its indebtedness was $0.2 million and $0.3 mi llion in 
20 16 and 2015, respectively. Total interest paid by SBDA for its indebtedness was $0.7 million during 2017. No interest was paid by SBDA for its 
indebtedness during 20 16 and 20 15. 

Note 9. Income taxes 

The Company and its Bermuda domiciled subsid iaries are not subject to Bermuda income tax under current Bermuda law. In the event there is a 
change in the current law such that taxes are imposed, the Company and its Bennuda domiciled subsidiaries would be exempt from such tax until 
March 31, 2035, pursuant to the Bermuda Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act of 1966. The Company has subsidiaries and branches that 
operate in various other j urisdictions around the world that arc subject to tax in the jurisd ictions in which they operate. The jurisdictions in which the 
Company's subsidiaries and branches arc subject to tax are Austra lia, Belgium, Canada, Germany, Gibraltar, Luxembourg, Malaysia, the Netherlands, 
Singapore, Sweden, Switzerland, the United K ingdom and the United States. 

SBDA's net (loss) income before income taxes for the years ended December 3 I, 2017, 2016, and 2015 was generated in the follo wing domestic and 
foreign jurisdictions: 

(Millions) 
Domestic: 
Bermuda 

Foreign: 
U.S. 
U.K. 
Sweden 
Luxembourg 
Netherlands 
Other 

T otal ( loss) inco me bcfo t·e income taxes 

$ 

$ 

201 7 

(79.8) 

(13.1) 
(26.0) 
(26. 1) 
43.4 
18.2 
(1.0) 

(84.4) 

$ 

$ 

The total income tax benefit (expense) for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 20 15 consisted oft he fo llowing: 

(Millions) 201 7 
Current tax (ex pense): 

U.S. Federal $ (0.4) $ 
State ( 1.5) 
Non-U.S. (3.7) 

Total current tax (expense) (5.6) 
Deferred tax (ex pense) benefit : 

U.S. Federal (3 1.5) 
State 
Non-U.S. (9.4) 

Total deferred tax (exl!ensc} benefit ~40.9) 

Total income tax (expense~ benefit $ (46.5) s 

2016 201 5 

59.7 $ 45.9 

(25.3) 68.9 
(7.0) (3.5) 

(29.5) 15.6 
105.3 250.9 

(0. 1) (0.1) 
(0.7) 0.2 

102.4 s 377.9 

2016 20 15 

2.1 $ (0. I) 
( 1.6) (1.5) 

( 11 .4) (9.6~ 

(J 0.9) (1 1.2) 

16.0 (21.4) 

2.3 (14.5) 

18.3 p 5.9l 
7.4 $ (47.1l 
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Effective nate Reconciliation 

A reconciliation ofta.xes calculated using the 22% Swedish statutory rate (the rate at wh ich the majority of SBDA's worldwide operations are taxed) to 
the income ta.x (expense) benefit on pre-tax income follows: 

(lvfillions) 2017 2016 2015 
Tax benefit (expense) at the statutory rate $ 18.6 $ (22.5) $ (83.2) 
Differences in ta.xes resulting from: 

Ta.x rate change enacted in the United States (45.6) 
Non-Sweden Earnings ( 17.6) 6.3 27.0 
Foreign tax credits 2.2 6.9 6.5 
Change in valuation al lowance including benefit fi·om intercompany debt 

1.4 55.0 11.3 
restruc111ring 
Ta.x reserve adjustments ( 1.2) (6.0) (5.7) 
Withholding ta.xcs (0.8) (1.4) (1.9) 
Ta.x rate change enacted in Luxembourg 0.4 (30.6) 
Other, net (3.9) (0.3) ( 1.1) 

Total income lax (expense) benefit on pre-tax ea rnings $ (46.5) $ 7.4 $ (47.1) 

The non-Sweden component of Pre-tax (loss) income was $(58.3) million, $131.9 mill ion, and $362.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 
2016, and 2015. 

On December 22,2017, Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "TCJA") was enacted into law. Substantially all of the provisions of the TCJA are effective for 
ta.xablc years beginning after December 31, 2017. The TCJA includes significant changes to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, the 
Code), including amendments which significantly change the ta.xation of individuals and business entities. Among numerous other changes, the 
corporate federal income tax rate was reduced from 35% to 21%, effective January I, 20 18. The ta.x effects of changes in tax laws must be recognized 
in the period in which the law is enacted, and deferred tax assets and liabilities to be measured at the enacted tax rate expected to apply when temporary 
di fferences are to be realized or settled. Thus, the Company's deferred taxes were rcmcasured on December 3 1, 2017, based upon the 21% federal 
income tax rate wh ich resulted in a $45.6 million reduction in the net deferred tax assets. Of this amount, $28.0 million was primarily related to net 
operating loss earryforwards and book-ta.x timing differences in its US subsidiaries and $ 17.6 million was related to net operating loss carry forwards in 
one of the Luxembourg subsidiaries, which is re-measured in patt by reference to the U.S. tax rate. The $45.6 million reduction in net deferred tax 
assets was recorded through income fi·om operations. 

The Swedish Tax Authority ("ST A") has denied the deduction of interest paid on intra-group debt instmments issued by two of our Swedish 
subsidiaries for tax years 20 12 tluough 2015. Such subsidiaries are currently in the process of appealing the STA 's decision based on appl icable law. 
Our reserve for uncertain tax positions has taken into account these developments. If our appeal were ultimately unsuccessful, we would be required to 
write down some or all of the Swedish deferred tax assets related to intra-group debt instruments. 

Tax Payments and Receipts 

Net income lax payments to national, state and local governments totaled $16.0 mill ion, $8.3 million, and $31.7 mill ion for the years ended December 
31, 2017, 2016, and 2015. 
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Deferred income taxes renee! the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and tl1e amounts for tax purposes. An outline of the significant components of SBDA's deferred tax assets and liabilities follows: 

(Millions) 201 7 2016 
Deferred income tax assets related to: 

Non-U.S. net operating loss carry forwards $ 305.0 $ 270.8 
U.S. federal net operating loss and capital carry forwards 34.7 40.0 
Tax credit carry forwards 18.3 15.2 
Loss reserve discount 8.9 22.0 
Incentive compensation and benefits accruals 1.8 6 .3 
Net unrealized investment losses 1.8 3.4 
Unearned Premiums 1.5 2.0 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.3 2.3 
Deferred interest 0.2 0.3 
Additional DTA as result of intercompany debt restructuring 7.4 
Foreign currency translations on investments and other assets 2.0 
Other items 3.4 2.6 

Total gross defened income tax assets 376.9 374.3 
Valuation allowance (7 1.8) (58. 1) 

Total adjusted defe rred tax asset 305.1 316.2 
Deferred income ta'> liabili ties related to: 
Safety Reserve (See Note 13) 286.6 259.7 
Intangible assets 8.7 
Foreign currency translations on investments and other assets 7.3 
Purchase accounting 2.4 3.5 
Deferred acqu isition costs 1.2 3.4 
Investment basis differences 1.1 8.7 
Other items 1.0 1.5 

Total deferred income tax liabilities 308.3 276.8 

Net deferred tax (liability) asset $ (3.1) $ 39.4 

SBDA's deferred tax assets are net of U .S. federal and non-U.S. va luation allowances and, to the extent they relate to non-U.S. jurisdictions, they are 
shown at year-end exchange rates. 

Of the $3.2 million net deferred ta"X liability as of December 3 1, 2017, $53.0 million relates to net deferred tax assets in U.S. subsidiaries, $189.8 
million relates to net deferred tax assets in Luxembourg subsidiaries, $ 11.2 million relates to net deferred tax assets in United Kingdom subsidiaries and 
$257.2 million relates to net deferred tax liabilities in Sweden subsidiaries. 

As a result of the acquisition of Armada, a net deferred tax liability of $8.7 million related to intangible assets was recorded as of December 31, 20 17. 
Of the $8.7 mill ion, $9.8 mill ion relates to a deferred tax liability related to there-measurement at fa ir value of the Armada 13arnout post-acquisition and 
$1.1 million relates to a deferred tax asset for Armada's distribution rel ationships, trade name, and tcclmology. 

Net Operating Loss and Capital Loss Carry forwards 

Net operating loss and capital loss carry forwards as of December 3 1, 20 17, the expiration dates and the deferred tax assets thereon arc as follows: 

(Millions) 2017 
United States Luxcmbour~;; Sweden Netherlands UK TOTAL 

2018-2022 $ 0.6 $ $ $ 1.0 $ $ 1.6 
2022-2037 166.7 0.4 167.1 
No expiration date 1,043.3 220.3 56.3 1,319.9 

Total 167.3 1,043.3 220.3 1.4 56.3 1,488.6 
Gross Deferred Tax Asset 35. 1 271.4 22.5 0.3 10.8 340.1 
Valuation Allowance (7 1.9) (0.3) (72.2) 

Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 35.1 s 199.5 s 22.5 $ s 10.8 s 167.9 
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SODA expects to utilize net operating loss carry forwards in Luxembourg of $821.8 million but does not expect to utilize the remainder as they belong 
to compa11ies that arc not expected to have sufficient taxable income in the fi1turc. Included in the U.S. net operating loss carryforwards are losses of 
$ 120.1 million subject to an annual limitation on utilization under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Of these loss carryforwards, $ 14 million will 
expire between 2022 and 2025, $104.5 million will expire between 2030 and 2032, and $48.8 million wi ll begin to expire in 2036. SBDA expects to 
utilize all of the U.S. net operating loss carryforwards. 

As of December 31, 20 17, there are U.S. foreign tax credits carry forwards avai lable of $13.7 million, of which a de minimis amoun t expires between 
20 18 and 2019, and the remain ing, which we expect to use, will begin to expire in 2022. As of December 31, 2017, there are alternative minimum tax 
credit carry forwards of$0.1 million which do not expire and are expected to become fully refundable beginning in the 2021 tax year under the TCJA. 

Valuation Allowance 

SBDA records a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if it becomes more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be 
realized. Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in income tax expense in the period of change. In determining whether or 
not a valuation allowance, or ch!mge therein, is warranted, SBDA considers factors such as prior earn ings history, expected fu ture eamings, carryback 
and carryforward periods and strategies that if executed would result in the realization of a deferred tax asset. Tt is possible that certain planning 
strategies or projected earnings in certain subsidiaries may not be feasible to utilize the entire deferred tax asset, which could result in material changes 
to SBDA's deferred tax assets and tax expense. 

Of the $7 1.8 million valuation allowance as of December 31, 2017, $72.2 million relates to net operating loss carryforwards in Luxembourg and 
Netherlands subsidiaries (discussed under "Net Operating Loss and Capital Loss Carryforwards"), $(0.4) million relates to other deferred tax assets in 
Luxembourg, Swedish, and United States subsidiaries. 

United States 
Sirius Re Holdings, Tnc. ("SReHi") has a de minimis valuation allowance on foreign tax credits, which will expire in 2018 and 20 19. SReHi has an 
additional $13.7 million of foreign tax credits that will expire between the years 2020 and 2027, which are expected to be fully utilized. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

Recognition of the benefit of a given tax position is based upon whether a company determines that it is more likely than not that a tax position will be 
sustained upon examination based upon the technical merits of the position. Tn evaluating the more likely than not recognition threshold, SBDA must 
presume that the tax position will be subject to examination by a taxing authority with fu ll knowledge of all relevant information. If the recogn ition 
threshold is met, then the tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate 
settlement. 

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

(Milfiom) Permanent Differences ( t ) Tcm~o.-a•J: Differences!!) Interest and Pen allies l~i Total 
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 15.0 $ 6.7 $ 0.1 $ 21.8 
Changes in prior year tax posit ions 
Tax positions taken during the current year 5.0 (0. L) 4.9 
Lapse in statute of limitations (0.2) (0. 1) (0.3) 
Set1lements with tax authorities 
Balance at December 31,2015 $19.8 $ 6.6 $ (0.0) $ 26.4 
Changes in prior year tax positions 
Tax positions taken during the current year 4.4 (2.5) 0.2 2. 1 
Lapse in statute of limitations 
Settlements with tax authorities 
Balance at December 31 , 2016 s 24.2 s 4.1 $ 0.2 $ 28.5 
Changes in prior year lax positions 0.2 (0. 1) 0.1 0.2 
Tax positions taken during the current year 3.8 (2.2) 1.6 
Lapse in statute of limitations (0.5) (0.5) 
Set1lements with tax authorities (0.3) ~0.2~ (0.5) 

Balance at Decembe1· 31, 2017 s 27.4 $ 1.8 $ 0.1 $ 29.3 

/1) Represents the amo11nl ofmwecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate. 
(l) Represents the amo11nl of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized would create a tempormJ'di.fference between the reported amo11111 of an item 
in the Company 's Balance Sheet and its tax basis. 
(J) Net of tax benefit. 
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If SBDA determines in the future that its reserves for unrecognized tax benefits on penmment di fferences and interest and penalties are not needed, the 
reversal of $27.4 million of such reserves as of December 3 1, 2017 would be recorded as an income tax bene fit and wou ld impact the effective tax rate. 
lf SBDA determines in the future that its reserves for unrecognized tax benefits on temporary differences are not needed, the reversal of$1.8 million of 
such reserves as of December 3 1, 2017 would not impact the effective tax rate due to deferred tax accounting but would accelerate the payment of cash 
to the tax ing authority. The vast majority of SBDA's reserves for unrecognized tax benefi ts on temporary differences relate to deductions for loss 
reserves where the timing of the deductions is uncertain. The company does not believe that there will be any s ignil1cant change to the amount of gross 
unrecognized tax benel1ts in the next twelve months. 
SBDA classifies all interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. During the years ended December 3 1, 20 17,201 6, 
and 201 5 SBDA recognized $(0.1 ) million, $0.2 million, and $(0. 1) million in interest income (expense), respectively, net of any tax benefit. The 
balance of accrued interest as of December 3 1, 2017 and 2016 is $0. 1 million, and $0.2 million, net of any tax benefit. 

Tax Examinations 

With few exceptions, SBDA is no longer su~ject to U.S. federal, state or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities fo r years before 2013. Tn 
accordance with the sale of SllDA to CMlG International, White Mountains generally will indemnify the Company for our additional tax liability in 
excess of our accounting for uncertain tax positions for tax expense occurring before the sale ofSilDA to CMIG Tntcrnational. 

Note 10. Derivatives 

Weather Derivatives 

For the year ended December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016, SBDA recognized $(1.5) million and $5.2 million of net (losses) gains on its weather and weather 
contingent derivatives portfolio. As of December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016, the fair value of the weather and weather contingent derivatives portfolio of$4.2 
million and $5.8 million, respectively. The fair values of the assumed contracts arc subject to change in the near-term and reflect management's best 
estimate based on various factors including, but not limited to, observed and forecasted weather conditions, changes in interest or fo reign cunency 
exchange rates and other market factors. Estimating the fair value of derivati ve instruments that do not have quoted market prices requires 
management's judgment in detem1ining amounts that could reasonably be expected to be received from or paid to a third party to setlle the contracts. 
Such amounts could be materially different from the amounts that might be realized in an actual transaction to settle the contract with a third party. 
Because of the sign ificance of the unobservable inputs used to estimate the fair value ofSBDA's weather risk contracts, the fair value measurements 
of the contracts are deemed to be Level 3 measurements in the fair value hierarchy. SBDA does not provide o r hold any collateral associated with the 
weather derivatives. 

Note 11. Employee benefit plans and compensation plans 

Employee Benefit Plans 

SBDA operates several retirement plans in accordance with the local regulations and practices. These plans cover substantially all SBDA employees and 
provide benefits to employees in event of death, disability or retirement. 

Non-U.S. 
Employees of Sirius Tnternational can participate in retirement plans through their branch office. The plans vary due to d iffe rent government 
regulations as well as different standards and practices in each country. In Sweden, where a de l1ned benefit pension plan is mandated by the 
government, Sirius International's employees participate in collective agreements funded by Sirius International. These collective agreements are 
managed by third party trustees who calculate the pension obligation, invoice Sirius International for additional funding, and invest the funds. 
Employees in Germany are covered by de fined benefit pension plans sponsored by Sirius Tntemational called Sirius Riickversicherungs Service 
GmbH Pension Plan. Employees in the United Kingdom and Belgium are el igible to participate in defined contribution plans. Tn the United Kingdom, 
Sirius International contributes 12% of the employee's salary. Contributed fi.mds are invested into an annuity of the employee's choosing. Tn Belgium, 
Sirius International contributes 6.5%-8.5% of the employee' s salary. Employees in Switzerland are eligible to participate in the industry-sponsored 
Swisscanto pension plan ("Swisscanto plan"). The Swisscanto plan is a combination of a defined contribut ion and a de fined benefit plan. For the 
Swisscanto plan, Sirius Tnternational incurs 60%-70% of the total premium charges and the employees incur the remaining 30-40%. As of December 
31, 2017 and 20 16, the projected benefit obligation of Sirius International's various benefit plans was $ 17.4 mi llion and $ 15.0 million, and the funded 
status was $(1.3) million and $(3.3) million. Sirius Jntemational recognized expenses related to these various plans of $4.9 million, $7.3 million, and 
$7.0 million in 2017, 20 16, and 2015. 

Sirius Bermuda sponsors defined contribution plans which cover substantially all of tbe employees of Sirius Bermuda. Under these plans, Sirius 
Bermuda is required to contribute LO% of each pm1icipant's sa l~ry into an individual account mainta ined by an independent pension administrato r. 
Employees become vested in the Sirius Bermuda contributions alter two years of service. Sirius Bermuda recognized expenses of $0.4 million in 
2017. In previous years, employees of Sirius Bermuda were covered by Sirius International sponsored plans and Sirius Intemational incurred 
expenses of$0.5 million and $0.5 million in20 16 and 20 15, respectively. 
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Within the U.S., SBDA sponsors several defined contribution plans for employees that provide for pre-tax salary reduction con tributions by 
employees. 

Sirius Tntemational Holding Company, Inc. ("SrHC") sponsors a defined contribution plan (the "SIIIC 401(k) Plan") which offers participants the 
abi lity to invest their balances in several different investment options. The SlHC 401(k) Plan provides qualifYing employees with matching 
contributions of 100% up to the first 2% and 50% of the next 4% of salary (subject to U.S. federa l limits on allowable contributions in a given year). 
Total expense for matching contributions to the plan was $1.3 million, $0.7 million, and $0.5 million in 2017, 20 16, and 2015. Additionally, all 
participants in the SJHC 40 I (k) Plan can earn a variable contribution of up to 7% of their salary, subject to the applicable IRS annual covered 
compensation limits ($0.3 million for 2017) and contingent upon SBDA's perfonnance. Total expense for variable contributions to the SlHC 401(k) 
l'lan was $0.3 million, $0.4 million, and $0.5 million in 20 17,2016, and 2015. 

Armada maintains a qualified 401 (k) plan (the "Armada 401 (k) Plan"). Under provisions of the Armada 401 (k) Plan, Armada may make discretionary, 
matching contributions. Matching contributions into the Armada 401 (k) Plan totaled $0. 1 million for 20 17 fl·om the date o f acquisition to December 31, 
2017. 

Long-Term T ncentive Compcnsatiou Plans 

SBDA grants share-based and non-share based incentive awards to certain key employees of SBDA and its subsidiaries. This includes awards that 
primarily consist of performance units. A wards eamed arc subject to the attainment of pre-specified performance goals at the end of a three-year period 
or as otherwise determined. Phantom shares and performance units earned are typically paid in cash. For the years ended December 3 1, 20 17, 2016, and 
20 15, SilO/\ expensed $1.7 million, $6.2 million, and $9.2 million, respectively, for share-based and non-share based incentive awards. Accrued 
incentive compensation for these plans was $6.6 million and $ 12.4 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Transaction and Retention Bonuses 

Under the SPA, bonus arrangements for ce11ain employees ofSBDA were granted . Certain of these bonus arrangemen ts were paid to bonus recipients as 
compensation fo r services performed before the sale date ("transaction bonuses".) In addition, certain employees received additional bonus payments 
under the bonus arrangements after the twelfth month and twentieth month anniversary of the sale date ("retention bonuses."). Under the SPA, White 
Mountains agreed to pay Sirius Ltd. an an10unt equal to the transaction bonuses plus the employer-paid portion of employment or similar taxes Jess tax 
benefits attributable to the payment. lu addition, White Mountains also agreed to pay Sirius Ltd. for the retention bonuses under the same terms as the 
transaction bonuses shortly after SBDA paid those amounts to the employees. During 2016, SBDA recorded $23.8 million in general and administrative 
expenses in connection with the transaction bonuses. Sirius Ltd. was paid $25.3 million and $30.5 million in 20 17 ami 20 16, respectively, fi·om its 
fonner parent for the transaction and retention bonuses after employment costs and taxes, which was recorded as Additional paid-in surplus. During 
20 17 and 2016, respectively, Sl3DA recorded $9.3 million and $11.8 million in general and administrative expenses in connection with the retention 
bonuses. 

Note 12. Common shareholder's equity and non-controlling interest 

Common Shareholder 

At December 3 1, 2017, Sirius Bemmda is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sirius Gro up. Sirius Group is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sirius 
Ltd., an exempted Bermuda limited liability company. At December 3 1, 2017, Sirius Ltd., is a who lly-owned subsidiary ofCMJG International through 
CMBermuda. 

Additional paid-in surplus 

On December 28, 2017 Sirius Ltd. through Sirius Group contributed The Phoenix common shares and call option that resulted in $71.6 million of 
Additional paid-in surplus to SBDA. On December 6, 2017, Sirius Group made a contribution of $64.9 million to the Company, which was reflected 
as Additional paid-in surplus. On December 20, 2016 Sirius Group made a contribution of $20.0 million to the Company which was reflected as 
Additional paid-in surplus. 

On April 18, 20 16, SBDA sold its investment in OneBeacon to White Mountains at fair value in connection with the sale of Sirius Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries to CMJG International and recorded $22. 1 million of Additional paid-in surplus for the excess o f fair value over the equity method 
carrying value ofOneBeacon. 

Dividends 

The Company paid common dividends of $ 120.0 million, $40.0 million, and $ 123.0 million to Sirius Group during 2017, 2016, and 2015, 
respectively. 
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Non-contr olling inter ests 

Non-controlling interests consist o f the ownership interests of non-controlling shareho lders in consolidated entities and are presented separately on the 
balance sheet. At December 3 1, 20 17 and December 3 1, 20 16 SBDA's balance sheet included $0.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively, in non­
controlling interests. 

Note 13. Statutory capital and surplus 

SBDA's insurance and reiJlSurancc operations are subject to regulation and supervision in each of the j urisdictions where they are domiciled and 
licensed to conduct business. Generally, regulatory authorities have broad supervisory and administrative powers over such matters as licenses, 
standards of solvency, premium rates, policy forms, investments, security deposits, methods of accounting, form and content o f financial statements, 
reserves fo r unpaid loss and LAE, reinsurance, minimum capital and surplus requirements, dividends and other distri butions to shareholders, periodic 
examinations, and annual and other report fi lings. In general, such regulation is for the protection o f pol icyholders rather than shareholders. 

Non-U.S. 
The Insurance Act 1978 of 13crmuda and re lated regulations, as amended ("Insurance Act"), regulates the insurance business of Bermuda-domiciled 
insurers and reinsurers. The Insurance Act imposes solvency and liquidity standards o n Bermuda insurance companies, as well as auditing and 
reporting requirements. The Bemmda Monetary Authority ("BMA"), a Solvency JI-equ ivalent regulatory regime, has also confirmed that it will act as 
the primary group supervisor effective July 1, 20 16 and has designated Sirius Bermuda as the designated insurer. Therefore, SBDA is subject to the 
BMA's group supervision and solvency mles. Under the Insurance Act, insurers and reinsurers are required to maintain minimum statutory cap ital 
and surplus at a level equal to the greater o f a minimum solvency margin ("MSM") and the Enhanced Capital Requirement ("ECR") which is 
established by reference to either a Bermuda Solvency Capi tal Requirement ("BSCR") model or an approved intemal capital model. The 13SCR model 
is a risk-based capital model that provides a method for determining an insurer's minimum required capital taking into account the risk characteristics 
of different aspects of the company's business. As o f December 3 1, 2017, the eligible capital fo r SBDA exceeded the required capital as measured by 
the BSCR model. 

Management has also evaluated the group and principal operating subsidiaries' abi lity to maintain adequate levels of statutory capital, liquidity and 
rating agency capital and believes they wi ll be able to do so. In performing this analysis, management has considered the most recent statutory capital 
position of each of the principal operating subsid iaries as well as the group overall, through its holding companies as a resu lt of BMA group 
regulation. Tn addition, management has evaluated the ability o f the holding companies to allocate capital and liquidity around the group as and when 
needed. 

SBDA has two Bermuda based insurance subsidiaries: Sirius Bennuda, a Class 4 insurer, and Alstead Reinsurance Ltd. ("Alstead Re"), a Class 3A 
insurer. Each of these Bemmda insurance subsidiaries are registered under the Insurance Act and are subject to regulation and supervision of the 
BMA. The BSCR for the relevant insurers for the year ended December 31, 201 7 has not be filed with the BMA as of April 26, 2018, the date on 
which the Consolidated Financial Statements were issued. As a result, the required statutory capital and surplus as at December 3 1, 2017, of $0.2 
billion is based on the MSM of all relevant insurers. Actual statutory capital and surplus o f the Bermuda based insurance subsidiaries as at December 
3 1, 20 17 was $2.5 billion. 1n addition, the Bermuda based insurance subsid iaries are required to maintain a minimum liquidity ratio. As of December 
31,2017, all liquidity ratio requirements were met. 

Sirius lntemational is subject to regulation and supervision in Sweden by the Financial Supervisory Authority ("FSA"). Sirius lntemational's total 
regulatory capital as of December 3 1, 2016 was $ 1.9 billion. In accordance with FSA regu lations, Sirius international holds restricted equity of $ 1.3 
billion as a component of Swedish regulatory capital. This restricted equity cannot be paid as d ividends. Under Solvency U, the FSA also acts as the 
European Economic Area ~:,rroup supervisor, with Sirius International UK Holding Ltd ("SIUK") serving as the highest European entity subject to the 
FSA's group supervision. Solvency II regulation in Europe gives the FSA the option to waive European-level group supervision if certain legal 
requirements are met. As of December 31, 2017, the FSA has not exercised this option. 

1l1e financial services industry in the United Kingdom is dual-regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority 
(collectively, the "UK R egulators"). ll1e U.K . Regulators regulate insurers, insurance intennediaries and Lloyd 's. The UK R egulators and Lloyd 's 
have common objectives in ensuring that the Lloyd 's market is appropriately regulated. Lloyd 's is required to implement certain rules prescribed by 
the UK Regu lators by the powers it has under the Lloyd 's Act of 1982 ("Lloyd's Act") relating to the operation o f the Lloyd 's market. l n addition, 
each year the UK Regulators requi re Lloyd's to satisfy an annual solvency test that measures whether Lloyd's has sufficient assets in the aggregate to 
meet all the outstand ing liabilities of its members. 

Lloyd 's pennits its coq>oratc and individual members ("Members") to underwrite insurance risks through Lloyd's syndicates. Members of Lloyd 's 
may participate in a syndicate for one or more underwriting years by providing capital to support the syndicate's underwriting. All syndicates arc 
managed by Lloyd 's approved managing agents. Managing agents receive fees and profit commissions in respect of the underwriting and 
administrative services they provide to the syndicates. Lloyd' s prescribes, in respect of its managing agents and Members, certain minimum standards 
relating to their management and control, solvency and various other requirements. 
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SBDA participates in the Lloyd's market through the 100% ownership of Sirius lntemational Corporate Member Ltd., a Lloyd's corporate member, 
which in turn provides underwriting capacity to Syndicate I 945. SBDA bas its own Lloyd's managing agent, Sirius International Managing Agency, 
which manages Syndicate 1945. Lloyd's approved net capacity for 2018 is £ 101.9 million, or approximately $ 137.7 million (based on the December 
31, 20 17 GDP to USD exchange rate). Stamp capacity is a measure of the amount of net premium (premiums written less acquisition costs) that a 
syndicate is authorized by Lloyd's to write. 

u.s. 
Sirius America and the insurance subsidiaries of Sirius Globa l Solutions arc subject to regulation and supervision by the NATC and the department of 
insurance in the state of domicile. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (''NAJC") uses risk-based capital ("RBC") standards for 
U.S. property and casualty insurers as a means of monitoring certain aspects affecting the overall financial condition of insurance companies. As of 
December 31, 20 17, the available capital of SBDA's U.S. insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiaries exceeded their respective RBC 
requirements. 

Sirius America's policyholders' surplus, as reported to regulatory authorities as of December 3 1, 20 17 and 20 16, was $52 1.8 million and $544.3 
million. Sirius America's statutory net (loss) income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 was $(6.4) million, $82.7 million, and 
$74.7 million. The principal differences between Sirius America's statutory amounts and the amounts reported in accordance with GAAP include 
deferred acquisition costs, deferred taxes, gains recognized under retroactive reinsurance contracts and market value adjustments for debt securities. 
The minimum policyholders' surplus necessary to satisfy Sirius America's regulatory requirements was $94.1 million as of December 3 I, 2017, 
which equals the authorized control level of the NAJC risk-based capital based on Sirius America's policyholders' surp lus. 

Oakwood Insurance Company ("Oakwood") policyholders' surplus, as reported to regulatory authorities as of December 31, 20 I 7 and 2016 was 
$41.4 million and $41.6 million. Oakwood's statutory net income (loss) for the years ended December 3 1,2017, 2016, and 2015 was $0.5 million, 
$(12.0) million and $0.7 million. The minimum policyholders' surplus necessary to sati sfy Oakwood's regulatory requirements was $5.8 million as 
of December 3 1, 20 17, which equals the authorized control level of the NAlC risk-based capital based on Oakwood's pol icyholders' surplus. During 
20 17, Mount Deacon was merged into Oakwood. 

Empire Insurance Company ("Empire") policyholders' surplus, as reported to regu latory authorities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $10.5 
million and $ 10.7 million. Empire's statutory net (loss) income for the years ended December 31 , 2017, 20 16, and 2015 was $(0.3) million, $0.0 
million and $0.1 million. The minimum policyholders' smvlus necessary to satisfy Empire's regulatory requirements was $8.8 million as of December 
31, 2017, and the NAlC risk-based capital authorized contro l level was $ 1.0 mi llion. 

Dividend Capacity 

Sirius Bermuda, has the ability to declare or pay dividends or make capital distributions during any 12-month period without the prior approval of 
Bermuda regulatory authorities on the condition that any such declaration or payment of dividends or capital distributions does not cause a breach of 
any of its regulatory solvency and liquidity requ irements. During 20 18, Sirius Bermuda has the ability to pay dividends or make capital distributions 
without the prior approva l o f regulatory authorities, subject to meeting all appropriate liquidity and solvency requi rements, of $636.7 million, which 
is equal to 25% of its December 31, 20 17 regulatory capital available for distribution. The amount of dividends available to be paid by Sirius 
Bermuda in any given year is also subject to cash now and earnings generated by Sirius Bermuda's business, as well as to d ividends received from 
its subsidiaries, including Sirius International. During 2017, Sirius Bermuda paid $120.0 million of dividends to its immediate parent. 

Sirius International has the ability to pay dividends up to Sirius Bermuda subject to the availabi lity o f unrestricted equity, calculated in accordance 
with the Swedish Act on Annual Accounts in Insurance Companies and the FSA. Unrestricted equity is calculated on a consolidated group account 
basis and on a parent account basis. Differences between the two include but are not limited to accounting for goodwill, subsid iaries (with parent 
accounts stated at original foreign exchange rates), taxes and pensions. Sirius Jntemational's ab ility to pay dividends is limited to the "lower of' 
unrestricted equity as calculated within the group and parent accounts. As of December 31 , 20 17, Sirius Tntcmational had $391.6 mill ion (based on the 
December 3 1, 20 17 SEK to USD exchange rate) of unrestricted equity on a parent account basis (the lower of the two approaches) available to pay 
dividends in 2018. The amount of dividends available to be paid by Sirius International in any g iven year is also subject to cash now and earnings 
generated by Sirius International's business, the maintenance of adequate solvency capital ratios for Sirius International and the consolidated SlUK 
group, as well as to di vidends received from its subsidiaries, including Sirius America. Earni ngs generated by Sirius International's business that arc 
allocated to the Safety Reserve are not available to pay div idends (see "Safe(!• Reserve" on tl1e next page). During 20 17, Si rius International declared 
$102.5 million and paid $20.0 million of dividends. 

Under normal course of business, Sirius America has the ability to pay dividends up to its immediate parent during any twelve-month period without 
the prior approval of regulatory authorities in an amount set by formu la based on the lesser of net investment income, as defined by statute, or 10% of 
statutory surplus, in both cases as most recently reported to regulatory authorities, subject to the availability of earned surplus and subject to dividends 
paid in prior periods. Based upon an agreement with its regu lators during 20 16, Sirius America shall commit to refrain from taking steps to pay any 
dividends for a period of two years fi·om the date of the sale of the Company from its former parent to CMlG International. As of December 3 1,2017, 
Sirius America had $52 1.8 million of statutory surplus and $121.0 mil lion of earned surplus. During 20 I 7, Sirius America did not pay any dividends 
to its immediate parent. 
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Capihtl Maintenance 

There is a capital maintenance agreement between Sirius International and Sirius America which obligates Sirius International to make contributions to 
Sirius America's surplus in order for Sirius America to maintain surplus equal to at least 125% of the company action level r isk based capital as defined 
in the NAIC Propetiy/Casualty Risk-Based Capital Report. The agreement provides for a max imum contribution to Sirius America of $200.0 million. 
During 20 17, Sirius International had not made any contributions to the surplus of Sirius America. In 20 17, Sirius International provided Sirius America 
witJ1 an accident year stop loss cover, with an attachment point in excess of 83% and a limit of$27.0 million. Th is accident year loss reinsurance was 
not renewed in 20 18. In addition, at November 1, 2016, Sirius America and Sirius International entered into a quota share agreement where Sirius 
America ceded S irius Intemational 75% of its reinsurance business on an accident year basis. Tit is quota share agreement was in force through March 
31,2018. During 2017 and 20 16, Sirius America ceded $1 15.0 million and $33.4 million of premiums earned to Sirius International under this quota 
share agreement. 

Safety Reserve 

Subject to certain limitations under Swedish law, Sirius International is pennittcd to transfer pre-tax income amounts into an untaxed reserve referred to 
as a Safety Reserve. As of December 3 I, 2017, Sirius International's Safety Reserve amounted to SEK 10.7 billion, or $1.3 billion (based on the 
December 3 1, 2017 SEK to USD exchange rate). Under GAAP, an amount equal to the Safety Reserve, net of a related deferred tax liability established 
at the Swedish lax rate of 22%, is classified as shareholder's equity. Generally, this deferred tax liabil ity is only required to be paid by Siri us 
Jntemational if it fai ls to maintain prescribed levels of premium writings and loss reserves in future years. As a result of the indefinite deferral of these 
taxes, Swedish regulatory authorities apply no taxes to the Safety Reserve when calculating solvency capital under Swedish insurance regulations. 
Accordingly, under local statutory requirements, an amount equal to the deferred tax liability on Sirius lntemational's Safe ty Reserve ($286.6 million as 
of December 3 1, 20 17) is included in solvency capital. Access to the Safety Reserve is restricted to coverage of insurance and reinsurance losses. 
Access for any other purpose requires the approval of Swedish regulatory authorities. Simi lar to the approach taken by Swedish reg ulatory authorities, 
most major rating agencies generally include the $1.3 billion balance of the Safety Reserve, without any provision for deferred taxes, in Sirius 
Intemational's regu latory capi tal when assessing Sirius International and SBDA's financial strength. Subject to certain limitations under Swedish law, 
Sirius International is permitted to transfer certain portions of its pre-tax income to its Swedish parent companies to minimize taxes (referred to as a 
group contribution). During 2017, Sirius International did not transfer any of its 2016 pre-tax income via group contributions to its Swedish parent 
companies. 

Note 14. Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 

SBDA's investments in unconsolidated affiliates represent investments in other companies in which SBDA has a significant voting and economic 
interest but does not control the entity. 

Symetra 
SBDA's investment in Symelra represented an investment in which SODA had a significant vot ing and economic interest but did not control the entity. 

Tn August 20 15, Symctra announced it had entered into a definitive merger agreement with Sumitomo Life Insurance Company ("Sumitomo Life") 
pursuant to which Sumitomo Life would acquire all of the outstanding shares of Symetra. Following the announcement and Symetra shareholders' 
November 5, 2015 meeting to approve the transaction, the Company's fonner parent relinquished its representation on Symetra's board of directors. As 
a resu lt, SBDA changed its accounting for Symetra common shares from the equity method to fa ir value. During the fourth quarter o f 20 15, SBDA 
recognized $218.5 million ($200.8 million after tax) of unrealized investment gains through net income, representing the difference between the 
carrying value of Symetra common shares under the equity method at the date of change and fair value at December 3 1, 2015. On February 1, 2016, 
Symetra closed its definitive merger agreement with Sumitomo Lite and SBDA received proceeds of $559.8 million, or $32.00 per common share. 
SBDA recognized $4.0 million in pre-tax net investment gains associated with Symctra in the first quarter of20 I 6. 

OneBeacon 
On April 18, 20 16, SBDA sold its investment in OneBeacon Insurance Group, Ltd. ("OneBeacon") at fair value lo its former parent for proceeds of 
$178.3 million in connection with the sale of SRDA to CMIG International and recorded $22.1 mi llion of add itional paid-in surplus for the excess of 
fair value over the equity method carrying value ofOneBeacon. 
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The following table summarizes amounts recorded by SllDA under the equity method relating to its investment in One Beacon for the period January 1, 
2016 until April 18,2016: 

(Millions) 
Equity method carrying value of investment in One Beacon as of December 3 I, 2015 
Equity in earnings ofOnclleacon 
Dividends received 
Other, net 
Proceeds received for the sale of One Beacon 
Excess of fair value received over equity method carrying value ofOneBeacon 

Equity method carrying value of investment in OneBeacon as of April 18, 2016 

Note 15. Variable interest entities 

$ 

$ 

Total 
15 1.9 

6.6 
(3.0) 
0.7 

(178.3) 
22.1 

SBDA consol idates all voti ng interest entities ("VOEs") in which it has a controlling financial interest and all YTEs in which it is considered to be the 
primary bene ficiary. 

Alstead Re 
During 20 17, SBDA determined that Alstead Re is a variable interest entity for which SBDA is the primary beneficiary and is required to conso lidate it. 
As of December 3 1, 2017, SBDA consolidated total assets of $12.6 million and total liabilities of $7.8 million of Alstead Re. As of December 3 1, 2017, 
SBDA recorded non-controlling interest of$0.2 million in Alstead Re. 

Note 16. Transactions with related parties 

International Medical Group and Sirius Acquisitions Holding Company II (US) 
On May 26, 20 17, Sirius Ltd., through Sirius Acquisitions Holding Company 11 (US) ("SAHC2"), acquired I 00% ownership of International Medical 
Group Acquisition, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("IMG"), a lead ing provider of global travel medical insurance products and assistance services. To 
faci litate and help fund the purchase of IMG, SAHC2 entered into a note with Sirius Bermuda and received $80.0 million ("SAHC2 Note") . The 
SAHC2 Note bears interest payable to Sirius Bermuda on the principal amount at a floating rate equal to the applicable LlllOR fo r the relevant interest 
period plus a 4.25% margin, payable qumterly on March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31 in each year, until maturity on May 31, 2022. 

Prior to its acquisition by SAI1C2, JMG had a term note and revolv ing credit faci lity with an unrelated third-party. As part of the acquisition of IMG, 
Sirius Bem1uda and Sirius International bought the tem1 note and revolving credit facility for $ 129.5 million fr·om the unrelated third-party ("JMG Term 
Note and Credit Facil ity"). The tenn note requires quarterly installments of principal o f $0.3 million, plus interest computed at a variable rate with a 
floor of 7.50%. During 20 17, IMG paid down a portion of the note that is owned by Sirius Ber111uda. At December 3 1, 2017, $1 OR.! million was 
outstanding on the term note and payable to Sirius 13crmuda and Sirius International. Total borrowings under the revo lving credit facil ity cannot exceed 
$ 10.0 million. At December 3 1, 20 17, $3.5 million was outstanding on the revolving credit facility . Interest on the revolving credit facili ty is based on 
variable rates with a floor of7.50%. The credit agreement also allows for additional borrowings based on certain financial ratios. 

At December 31,2017, the SAI-IC2 Note and IMG Term Note and Credit Facility are included in Other long-term investments on the balance sheet at 
amortized cost. 

On December 29,2017, International Medical Insurance Company, Lid. , a Bermuda exempted company, was merged with and into the Company. 

During 2017, SBDA obtained $152.2 million, or II%, of its gross written premiums through !MG. During 2016 m1d 20 15, Sirius Group received 14% 
and 15% of its gross written premiums through IMG, respectively. 

Certus 
On May 26, 20 17, 1MG sold IMG- Stop Loss to Certus Management Group, Inc. ("Certus") for $10.0 mill ion. Certus paid IMG $I .0 million in cash 
and obtained $9.0 million in financing from!MG in the form of a secured promissory note payable. The promissory note is secured by a pledge of the 
shares of IMG - Stop Loss by Certus. SBDA has determined that Certus and IMG - Stop Loss are VIEs to Sirius Ltd. and its subsidiaries that SBDA 
does not have to consolidate as it does not have the power to direct the activities of either company. 

Sirius America and IMG - Stop Loss have continued the Program Management Agreement that was in place prior to the purchase o f lMG under 
amended tenns. The amended agreement gives Sirius America rights of first refusal to act as insurance carrier for IMG- Stop Loss but does not give 
SBDA controlling power or impede IMG - Stop Loss from functioning as an independent entity. 

White lrfouutaius Advisors 
White Mountains Advisors ("WMA"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SBDA's former parent, provided investment advisory and management 
services to SI3DA and its subsidiaries under an Investment Adv isory Services Agreement. During 2016, SBDA terminated th is agreement. SBDA 
incurred $3.0 mi llion and $5.5 million of investment fees during 20 16 and 20 15, respectively, fo r services provided directly by .WMA or through its 
sub-advisors. As ofDeccmber 31, 2017 and 20 16, SI3D/\ did not owe any amount to WMA under thi s agreement. 
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Note 17. Commit men ts and con tingencies 

SBDA leases ce1tain office space under non-cancellable operating leases that expire on various dates. The future annual minimum rental payments 
required under non-cancellable leases for oflice space are as follows: 

(Millions) 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 and after 

Total 

Future Payments 

$ 8.4 
7.2 
4.1 
3.6 
8.3 

$ 31.6 

Total rental expense for the years ended December 3 1, 2017, 2016, and 20 15 was $8.9 million, $6.2 million, and $6.4 million, respectively. SBDA also 
has various other lease obligations, which are not material in the aggregate. 

Tile Phoenix 
At December 3 1, 2017 SBDA had a commitment to purchase approximately 46.24% of shares in The Phoenix from Delek Group for an additional sum 
ofNJS 2.3 billion in cash (or $663. 1 million using the December 31, 2017 NIS to USD conversion rate), subject to certain adjustments for interest and 
eamings. (See Note 2). If regulatory approval is received, SBDA expects the acquisition to be completed during 2018. 

Lega l Proceedings 

SBDA and the insurance and reinsurance industry in general, are routinely subject to claims related litigation and arbitration in the normal course of 
business, as well as litigation and arbitration that do not arise fi·om, or are directly related to, c laims activity. Our estimates of the costs o f settling 
matters routinely encountered in claims activity are reflected in the reserves for unpaid loss and LAE. (See Note 3). 

SBDA considers the requirements of ASC 450, Contingencies ("ASC 450"), when evaluating its exposure to non-claims related lit igation and 
arbitration. ASC 450 requires that accruals be established for litigation and arbitration if it is probable that a loss has been incurred and it can be 
reasonably estimated. ASC 450 also requires that litigation and arbitration be disclosed if it is probab le that a loss has been incurred or it there is a 
reasonable possibility that a loss may have been incurred. 

Although the ultimate outcome of claims and non-claims related litigation and arbitration, and the amount or range of potential loss at any particular 
time, is o fien inherently uncertain, management does not believe that the ultimate outcome of such claims and non-claims related litigation and 
arbitration will have a material adverse effect on SBDA's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

The following summarizes one, ongoing non-claims related litigation: 

Tribune Company 
In June 201 1, Deutsche Dank Trust Company Americas, Law Debenture Company of New York and Wilmington Trust Company (collectively referred 
to as "Plaintiffs"), in their capacity as trustees for certain senior notes issued by the Tribune Company ("Tribune"), filed lawsuits in various jurisdictions 
(the "Noteholdcr Actions") against numerous defendants including SBDA in their capacity as former shareholders of Tribune seeking recovery ofthe 
proceeds from the sale of common stock of Tribune in connection with Tribune's leveraged buyout in 2007 (the "LBO"). Tribune filed for bankruptcy 
in 2008 in the Delaware bankruptcy court (the "Bankruptcy Court"). The Bankruptcy Court granted Plaintiffs permission to commence these LBO­
related actions, and in 20 11 , the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation granted a motion to consolidate the actions for pretrial matters and transferred 
all such proceedings to the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the "SONY"). Plaintiffs seek recovery of the proceeds 
received by the fo rmer Tribune shareholders on a theory of constructive fi·audulent transfer asserting that Tribune purchased or repurchased its common 
shares without receiving fair consideration at a time when it was, or as a result of the purchases of shares, was rendered, insolvent. Certain subsidiaries 
of SBDA received approximately $6. 1 million for Tribune common stock tendered in connection with the LBO. 

The Court granted an omnibus motion to dismiss the Noteholder Actions in September 20 13 and Plaintiffs' appealed. On March 29, 2016, a three judge 
panel of the U.S. Second Circuit Comt of Appeals affirmed the dismissal of the Noteholder Action. The Plaintiffs tiled a petition for reconsideration or 
a rehearing en bane of the Second Circuit's decision affirming the dismissal of the state law fraudulent conveyance cases. By order dated July 22, 20 16, 
the Second CiJcuit denied the petition in full. On September 9, 2016, Plaintiffs filed a petition for a writ of certiorari, seeking U.S. Supreme Court 
review. 

In addition, SBDA in their capacity as former shareholders of Tribune, along with thousands of former Tribune shareholders, have been named as 
defendants in an adversary proceeding brought by the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors of the Tribune Company (the "Committee"), on 
behalf of the Tribune Company, which seeks to avoid the repurchase of shares by Tribune in the LBO on a theory of intentional fraudulent transfer (the 
"Committee Action"). Tribune emerged from bankruptcy in 2012, and a litigation trustee replaced the Committee as plaintiff in the Committee Action. 
This mutter was conso lidated tbr pretrial matters with the Noteholder Actions in the SONY and was stayed pending the motion to dismiss in the 
Noteholdcr Actions. 
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An omnibus motion to dismiss the shareholder defendants in the Committee Action was filed in May 2014, and was granted on January 6, 20 17. The 
plaintiff moved to amend its fifth amended complaint to add a constructive fraudulent conveyance claim against the shareholder defendants. On August 
24, 2017 the SONY denied the plaintiff's motion without prejudice. However, on March 8, 2018, the plaintiff moved to renew its request to amend the 
complaint based on the Supreme Court's decision in Merit Mgmt Grp. LP. v. FTI Consulting, Inc., holding that the safe harbor protections ofScction 
546(e) (which prevent the bankruptcy trustee from unwinding certain transactions) did not apply where a transfer is conducted through a financial 
institution that is neither the debtor, nor the transferee, but serves only as a conduit. 

No amount has been accrued in connection with this matter as o f Dccember 31 , 2017 and December 31, 2016, as the amount of loss, if any, cannot be 
reasonably estimated. 

Note 18. Subsequent events 

Subsequent Events (ASC 855) established general standards for accounting and disclosures of events occurri ng subsequent to the balance sheet date 
but prior to issuance of financial statements. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 26, 2018, the date on which the 
Consolidated Financial Statements were issued. 
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